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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated talsimeet of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. and sulrgdia
(“the Company”) as of December 31, 2009 and 200! the related consolidated statements of income,
changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows #eded. These financial statements are the resgypdy

of the Company’s management. Our responsibilitg isxpress an opinion on these financial statesressed

on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the R@leverning the Audit of Financial Statements bytiGed
Public Accountants and auditing standards genematlyepted in the Republic of China. Those starsdard
required that we plan and perform the audit to iobteasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatements. a@dgit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the (iahrstatements. An audit also includes assesting
accounting principles used and significant estisiatede by management, as well as evaluating thealbve
financial statement presentation. We believe ¢hiataudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetsepresent fairly, in all material respects, thearicial
position of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. and subsiesaas of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and thégesu
their operations and their cash flows for the y¢hes ended in conformity with the Guidelines Goweg the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities dssuand accounting principles generally acceptethé
Republic of China.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated findratimements, on January 1, 2008, the Company edopt
Interpretation 96-052 issued by the Accounting &w®search Development Foundation of the Republic of
China that requires companies to record bonusek tpagemployees, directors and supervisors as aansgp
rather than an appropriation of earnings. The Guomgpearly adopted the new Statements of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 41, “Operating Segmerig&FAS No. 41") beginning from September 1, 2009.

March 10, 2010
Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statemardsntended only to present the financial positicsults
of operations and cash flows in accordance withoaoting principles and practices generally acceptethe
Republic of China and not those of any other judsdns. The standards, procedures and practioeaudit
such consolidated financial statements are thoseigdly accepted and applied in the Republic ofn@hi

For the convenience of readers, the auditors’ ré@ord the accompanying consolidated financial stegets
have been translated into English from the origi@&inese version prepared and used in the Repabl@hina.
If there is any conflict between the English varsamd the original Chinese version or any diffemc the
interpretation of the two versions, the Chineseglaage auditors’ report and consolidated financigtements
shall prevail.



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, ExcepPar Value Data)

2009 2008
ASSETS Amount % Amount %
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 4) $ 73,259,490 16 $ 81,288,165 18
Financial assets at fair value through profit @sl¢Notes 2 and 5) 40,519 - 258,578 -
Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 2 and 6) 17,537,089 4 14,182,385 3
Held-to-maturity financial assets (Notes 2 and 7) 1,099,595 - 769,435 -
Trade notes and accounts receivable, net of allogvéor doubtful accounts of
$2,798,679 in 2009 and $3,050,691 in 2008 (Notas®8) 11,973,180 3 10,844,712 2
Receivables from related parties (Note 28) 94,323 - 2,052 -
Other monetary assets (Note 9) 1,839,745 - 2,226,256 -
Inventories, net (Notes 2, 3, 10 and 20) 4,049,207 1 3,902,498 1
Deferred income taxes assets (Notes 2 and 25) 101,347 - 118,535 -
Restricted assets (Notes 20, 29 and 30) 177,462 - 58,914 -
Other current assets (Notes 11 and 20) 4,319,700 1 4,556,040 1
Total current assets 114,491,657 25 118,207,570 25
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Investments accounted for using equity method (Natend 12) 1,621,772 - 2,337,190 -
Financial assets carried at cost (Notes 2 and 13) 2,536,560 1 2,537,357 1
Held-to-maturity financial assets (Notes 2 and 7) 3,929,662 1 3,044,102 1
Other monetary assets (Notes 14 and 30) 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 -
Total long-term investment 9,087,994 2 8,918,649 2
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 2, 15, 28, 28d 30)
Cost
Land 102,131,565 23 101,460,017 22
Land improvements 1,535,066 - 1,494,398 -
Buildings 63,184,398 14 63,029,159 14
Computer equipment 16,343,774 4 16,130,398 3
Telecommunications equipment 656,016,086 146 650,204,202 140
Transportation equipment 2,113,053 - 2,406,111 1
Miscellaneous equipment 7,230,632 2 7,331,543 2
Total cost 848,554,574 189 842,055,828 182
Revaluation increment on land 5,800,909 1 5,810,650 1
854,355,483 190 847,866,478 183
Less: Accumulated depreciation 557,020,560 124 540,822,370 117
297,334,923 66 307,044,108 66
Construction in progress and advances relatedduigition of equipment 15,687,426 4 16,005,390 4
Property, plant and equipment, net 313,022,349 70 323,049,498 70
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Note 2)
3G concession 6,737,479 2 7,486,088 2
Goodwill 282,182 - 226,257 -
Others 597,417 - 558,435 -
Total intangible assets 7,617,078 2 8,270,780 2
OTHER ASSETS
Leased assets (Note 29) 362,700 - 516,637 -
Idle assets (Note 2) 957,475 - 957,757 -
Refundable deposits 1,550,825 1 1,373,644 -
Deferred income taxes assets (Notes 2 and 25) 482,931 - 1,543,315 1
Restricted assets (Note 29) 23,524 - 8,536 -
Others (Note 27) 1,400,282 - 743,903
Total other assets 4,777,737 1 5,143,792 1
TOTAL $ 448,996,815 100 $ 463,590,289 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdneolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 2010)

2009 2008
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY Amount % Amount %
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term loans (Note 16) $ 763,000 - $ 258,000 -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss (Notes 2 and 5) 828 - 107,344 -
Trade notes and accounts payable (Note 20) 10,155,383 2 11,359,570 2
Payables to related parties (Note 28) 335,719 - 523,488 -
Income tax payable (Notes 2 and 25) 4,311,545 1 5,687,100 1
Accrued expenses (Notes 3 and 17) 17,448,914 4 16,345,702 4
Due to stockholders for capital reduction (Notg 21 9,696,808 2 19,115,554 4
Current portion of long-term loans (Note 19) 117,181 - 8,440 -
Other current liabilities (Notes 2, 18, 20, 28 &14d 16,870,329 4 16,529,811 4
Total current liabilities 59,699,707 13 69,935,009 15
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term loans (Note 19) 221,252 - 29,400 -
Deferred income 2,483,764 1 2,072,297 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,705,016 1 2,101,697 -
RESERVE FOR LAND VALUE INCREMENTAL TAX (Note 15) 94,986 - 94,986 -
OTHER LIABILITIES
Accrued pension liabilities (Notes 2 and 27) 1,216,940 - 5,173,489 1
Customers’ deposits 5,998,035 2 6,159,722 2
Others 318,517 - 431,515 -
Total other liabilities 7,533,492 2 11,764,726 3
Total liabilities 70,033,201 16 83,896,418 18
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO STOCKHOLDERS OF THE PARENTNptes 2,
15, 21 and 23)
Common stock - $10 par value;
Authorized: 12,000,000 thousand shares
Issued: 9,696,808 thousand shares 96,968,082 21 96,968,082 21
Preferred stock - $10 par value - - - -
Additional paid-in capital:
Capital surplus 169,496,289 38 179,193,097 38
Donated capital 13,170 - 13,170 -
Equity in additional paid-in capital reported lyuéy-method investees 304 - 3 -
Total additional paid-in capital 169,509,763 38 179,206,270 38
Retained earnings:
Legal reserve 56,987,241 13 52,859,566 11
Special reserve 2,675,894 - 2,675,894 1
Unappropriated earnings 43,749,962 10 41,276,274 9
Total retained earnings 103,413,097 23 96,811,734 21
Other adjustments
Cumulative translation adjustments 7,626 - 29,474 -
Unrecognized net loss of pension (43,750) - (84) -
Unrealized loss on financial instruments (447,129) - (2,272,242) -
Unrealized revaluation increment 5,803,446 1 5,813,187 1
Total other adjustments 5,320,193 1 3,570,335 1
Total equity attributable to stockholders of tlzeent 375,211,135 83 376,556,421 81
MINORITY INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 3,752,479 1 3,137,450 1
Total stockholders' equity 378,963,614 84 379,693,871 82
TOTAL $ 448,996,815 100 $ 463,590,289 100



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

2009 2008
Amount % Amount %
NET REVENUES (Note 28) $ 198,361,220 100 $ 201,669,521 100
OPERATING COSTS (Note 28) 112,735,948 57 113,546,289 56
GROSS PROFIT 85,625,272 43 88,123,232 44
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 28)
Marketing 22,292,965 11 22,732,128 11
General and administrative 3,764,974 2 3,680,178 2
Research and development 3,173,255 2 3,143,935 2
Total operating expenses 29,231,194 15 29,556,241 15
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 56,394,078 28 58,566,991 29
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND GAINS (Note 28)
Interest income 478,708 - 1,916,263 1
Valuation gain on financial instruments, net 98,654 - 550,703 1
Foreign exchange gain, net 88,840 - 336,037 -
Equity in earnings of equity method investees, net - - 63,648 -
Others 755,692 1 509,482 -
Total non-operating income and gains 1,421,894 1 3,376,133 2
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Loss arising from natural calamities 148,747 - - -
Loss on disposal of financial instruments, net 141,865 - 671,685 -
Impairment loss on assets 109,968 - 1,168,399 1
Equity in losses of equity method investees, net 23,223 - - -
Interest expense 15,223 - 4,256 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
net 6,903 - 278,091 -
Others 131,956 - 136,773 -
Total non-operating expenses and losses 577,885 - 2,259,204 1
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 57,238,087 29 59,683,920 30
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 2 and 25) 12,742,934 7 13,892,308 7
CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME $ 44,495,153 2 $ 45,791,612 3
(Continued)




CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

2009 2008
Amount % Amount %
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Stockholders of the parent $ 43,757,426 22 $ 45,010,342 22
Minority interests 737,727 - 781,270 1
$ 44495153 _22 $ 45791612 _ 23
2009 2008
Before After Before After
Income Income Income Income
Tax Tax Tax Tax
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 26)
Basic earnings per share $ 5.79 $ 451 $ 6.03 $ 4.64
Diluted earnings per share $ 5.77 $ 4.50 $ 6.02 $ 4.63
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdimsolidated financial statements.
(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 2010) (Concluded)



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Other Adjustments

Common Stock Preferred Stock Retained Earnings Cumulative Unrealized Loss Unrealized Total
Shares Shares Additional Unappropriated Translation Unrecognized Net on Financial Revaluation Minority Stockholders'
(Thousands) Amount (Thousands) Amount Paid-in Capital Legal Reserve Special Reserve Earnings Adjustments Loss of Pension Instruments Increment Treasury Stock Interests Equity

BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2008 9,667,845 $ 96,678,451 - $ $ 200,605,563 $ 48,036,210 $ 2,678,723 $ 48,317,617 $ (1,980) $ (90) $ 37,508 $ 5,823,200 $ (7,107,494) $ 2,774,561 $ 397,842,269
Adjustment of additional paid-in capital from

revaluation of land to income upon disposal - - - - - - - - - - (10,013) - - (10,013)
Appropriation of 2007 earnings

Legal reserve - - - - 4,823,356 - (4,823,356) - - - - - - -

Reversal of special reserve - - - - - (3,304) 3,304 - - - - - - -

Cash dividend - NT$4.26 per share - - - - - - (40,716,130) - - - - - - (40,716,130)

Stock dividend - NT$0.1 per share 95,578 955,778 - - - - (955,778) - - - - - - -

Employees' bonus - cash - - - - - - (1,303,605) - - - - - - (1,303,605)

Employees' bonus - stock 43,453 434,535 - - - - (434,535) - - - - - - -

Remuneration to board of directors and supervisors - - - - - - (43,454) - - - - - - (43,454)
Capital surplus transferred to common stock 1,911,555 19,115,554 - (19,115,554) - - - - - - - - - -
Decrease in minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (419,211) (419,211)
Capital reduction (Note 21) (1,911,555) (19,115,554) - - - - - - - - - - - (19,115,554)
Consolidated net income in 2008 - - - - - - 45,010,342 - - - - - 781,270 45,791,612
Unrealized loss on financial instruments held by

investees - - - - - - - - - (7,398) - - - (7,398)
Equity adjustments in investees - - - - - - (54,583) - - - - - - (54,583)
Cumulative translation adjustment for foreign-currency

investments held by investees - - - - - - - 31,454 - - - - (345) 31,109
Defined benefit pension plan adjustments of investees - - - - - - - - 6 - - - 13 19
Special reserve for gain arising from disposal of land - - - - - 475 (475) - - - - - - -
Cancellation of treasury stock - 110,068 thousand

common shares (Notes 2 and 23) (110,068) (1,100,682) - (2,283,739) - - (3,723,073) - - - - 7,107,494 - -
Unrealized loss on financial instruments - - - - - - - - - (2,302,352 - - 1,162 (2,301,190
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2008 9,696,808 96,968,082 - 179,206,270 52,859,566 2,675,894 41,276,274 29,474 (84) (2,272,242) 5,813,187 - 3,137,450 379,693,871
Adjustment of additional paid-in capital from

revaluation of land to income upon disposal - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Appropriation of 2008 earnings

Legal reserve - - - - 4,127,675 - (4,127,675) - - - - - - -

Cash dividend - NT$3.83 per share - - - - - - (37,138,775) - - - - - - (37,138,775)
Cancellation of preferred stock (Note 21) - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Capital surplus transferred to common stock 969,680 9,696,808 - (9,696,808) - - - - - - - - - -
Decrease in minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (128,833) (128,833)
Capital reduction (Note 21) (969,680) (9,696,808) - - - - - - - - - - - (9,696,808)
Consolidated net income in 2009 - - - - - - 43,757,426 - - - - - 737,727 44,495,153
Equity adjustments in investees - - - 301 - - (17,288) - - - - - - (16,987)
Cumulative translation adjustment for foreign-currency

investments held by investees - - - - - - - (21,848) - - - - (210) (22,058)
Defined benefit pension plan adjustments of investees - - - - - - - - (43,666) - - - (1,079) (44,745)
Unrealized loss on financial instruments - - - - - - - - - 1,825,113 - - 7.424 1,832,537
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2009 9,696,808 $ 96,968,082 - $ $ 169,509,763 $ 56,987,241 $ 2,675,894 $ 43,749,962 $ 7,626 $ (43,750 $ (447,129 $ 5,813,187 $ - $ 3,752,479 $ 378,973,355

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the cdasedi financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 10, 2010)




CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Consolidated net income
Provision for doubtful accounts
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of premium of financial assets
Loss on disposal of financial instruments, net
Valuation loss on inventory
Valuation gain on financial instruments, net

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipneett,

Equity in loss (earnings) of equity investees, net
Dividends received from equity investees
Loss arising from natural calamities
Impairment loss on assets
Loss on disposal of leased assets
Deferred income taxes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Financial assets held for trading
Trade notes and accounts receivable
Receivables from related parties
Other monetary assets
Inventories
Other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Financial liabilities held for trading
Trade notes and accounts payable
Payables to related parties
Income tax payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
Deferred income
Accrued pension liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of designated financial assets atVaiue through profit c

loss

Proceeds from disposal of designated financiatasddair value

through profit or loss
Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale fimaressets

Acquisition of held-to-maturity financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity finahassets

Acquisition of financial assets carried at cost

2009 2008
$ 44,495,153 $ 45,791,612
462,329 505,285
36,319,957 38,216,171
16,080 3,258
141,865 671,685
56,055 58,961
(98,654) (550,703)
6,903 278,091
23,223 (63,648)
89,279 217,177
148,747 -
109,968 1,168,399
24 733
1,098,630 (155,852)
221,427 (207,535)
(1,491,798) 126,578
(70,392) (388,712)
350,295 4,841,092
(143,704) (270,506)
510,031 (1,182,000)
145 -
(1,564,541) 190,333
(206,090) 656,488
(1,377,091) (1,570,848)
950,081 906,990
775,918 808,494
421,598 567,147
(3,959,845 1,244,325
77,285,594 91,863,015
(44,625) -
62,695 -
(9,263,485) (8,759,539)
8,096,767 8,425,156
(2,099,875) (3,326,951)
868,860 659,605
(142,455) (485,859)
(Continued)



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2009 2008
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets caaiembst $ 302,157 $ 354,933
Increase in other monetary assets - (30,000)
Proceeds from other monetary assets - 29,109
Acquisition of investments accounted for using ggmethod (559,725) (554,693)
Proceeds from disposal of long-term investment - 44,256
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (25,477,587) (30,118,922)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egeigt 65,177 14,077
Increase in intangible assets (274,406) (208,323)
Increase in restricted assets (90,574) (3,065)
Increase in other assets (913,81% (565,30}
Net cash used in investing activities (29,470,891 (34,525,51y
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in short-term loans 485,000 222,000
Increase in long-term loans 400,000 -
Repayment of long-term loans (123,645) (37,280)
Decrease in customers’ deposits (118,081) (126,699)
Decrease in other liabilities (199,126) (293,747)
Cash dividends paid (37,836,442) (41,202,177)
Remuneration to board of directors and supervignasbonus to
employees - (1,394,077)
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock optiontgdaby subsidiary 58,289 63,436
Capital reduction (19,115,554 (9,557,77y
Net cash used in financing activities (56,449,559 (52,326,321
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES (6,693 30,795
EFFECT OF CHANGE ON CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 612,874 13,192
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (8,028,675) 5,055,164
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 81,288,165 76,233,001
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 73,259,490 $ 81,288,165
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Interest paid (excluding capitalized interest exgg@n $ 13480 $ 4,095
Income tax paid $ 13,023,872 $ 15,620,016
(Continued)



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2009 2008

NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Current portion of long-term loans $ 117,181 $ 8,440

Reclassification from common capital stock to dustbckholders for

capital reduction $ 9,696,808 $ 19,115,554

CASH AND NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in property, plant and equipment $ 25,150,339 $ 31,162,149

Payables to suppliers 359,280 (1,070,843)

Prepayments for equipment (32,032 27,616

$ 25477587 $ 30,118,922

The acquisition of InfoExplorer Co., Ltd. (“IFE")as made on January 20, 2009. The following taldegnts
the allocation of acquisition costs of IFE to assetquired and liabilities assumed based on thgivalues on
the basis of the final data on May 7, 2009:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 457,990
Receivables 13,479
Other current assets 14,792
Property, plant, and equipment 40,221
Identifiable intangible assets 53,001
Refundable deposits 2,468
Other assets 2,338
Payables (83,319)
Income tax payable (246)
Other current liabilities (153
Total 500,571
Percentage of ownership 49.07%
245,630
Goodwill 37,870
Acquisition costs of acquired subsidiary (cash preéfor long-term investments in
December 2008) $ 283,500
(Continued)



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

The acquisition of Chunghwa Investment Co., Lt€CH1") and its subsidiaries was made on Septemb20@9.
The following table presents the allocation of asijion costs of Chunghwa Investment Co., Ltd. dtsd
subsidiaries to assets acquired and liabilitiesirassl based on their fair values on the basis ofitia data
performed:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 913,593
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo 51,357
Available-for-sale financial assets 568,377
Trade notes and accounts receivable 76,258
Inventories 60,040
Other current assets 19,429
Investments accounted for using equity method 57,339
Financial assets carried at cost 155,714
Property, plant, and equipment 90,278
Identifiable intangible assets 33,662
Other assets 22,462
Trade notes and accounts payable (33,665)
Accrued expense (16,496)
Income tax payable (1,289)
Short-term loans (20,000)
Long-term loans (24,238)
Other liabilities (1,115
Subtotal 1,951,706
Minority interests (100,071
Total 1,851,635
Percentage of additional ownership 40%
740,654
Goodwill 18,055
Acquisition costs of acquired subsidiary paid islta $ 758,709

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 2010) (Concluded)



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesStated Otherwise)

1. GENERAL

Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. (“Chunghwa”) was incogted on July 1, 1996 in the Republic of China
(“ROC”) pursuant to the Article 30 of the Telecommzations Act. Chunghwa is a company limited by
shares and, prior to August 2000, was wholly owr®d the Ministry of Transportation and
Communications (“MOTC”). Prior to July 1, 1996etkburrent operations of Chunghwa were carried out
under the Directorate General of Telecommunicat{h&T”). The DGT was established by the MOTC
in June 1943 to take primary responsibility in texelopment of telecommunications infrastructure &n
formulate policies related to telecommunication®n July 1, 1996, the telecom operations of the DGT
were spun-off to as Chunghwa which continues toyoawt the business and the DGT continues to be the
industry regulator.

As the dominate telecommunications service providerfixed-line and Global System for Mobile
Communications (“GSM”) in the ROC, Chunghwa is sabjto additional regulations imposed by ROC.

Effective August 12, 2005, the MOTC had completesl grocess of privatizing Chunghwa by reducing the
government ownership to below 50% in various stagés July 2000, Chunghwa received approval from
the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SF&"af domestic initial public offering and its commo
shares were listed and traded on the Taiwan Steckdhge (the “TSE”) on October 27, 2000. Certdin o
Chunghwa’s common shares had been sold, in coonestth the foregoing privatization plan, in domest
public offerings at various dates from August 200@uly 2003. Certain of Chunghwa’'s common shares
had also been sold in an international offerings@€urities in the form of American Depository Skare
(“ADS”) on July 17, 2003 and were listed and tragedthe New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”).
The MOTC sold common shares of Chunghwa by audtithe ROC on August 9, 2005 and completed the
second international offering on August 10, 2008lpon completion of the share transfers associatdd w
these offerings on August 12, 2005, the MOTC owhests than 50% of the outstanding shares of
Chunghwa and completed the privatization plan.

Senao International Co., Ltd. (“SENAQ”) was incaged in 1979. SENAO engages mainly in selling
and maintaining mobile phones and its peripheraldpects. Chunghwa acquired 31.33% shares of
SENAO on January 15, 2007 and has substantialaddnt'SENAO by obtaining half of the seats of the
board of directors of SENAO on April 12, 2007. ®arch 27, 2009, the board of directors of Chunghwa
resolved to purchase 48,000 thousand common sba8ENAO through SENAQO’s private placement.
However, Chunghwa and SENAO did not complete trguired procedures within the legal payment
period; therefore, Chunghwa and SENAO decidedgoatitinue the private placement.

Senao International (Samoa) Holding Ltd. (SIS) watablished by SENAO in 2009. SIS will engage
mainly in international investment activities; hoxege, no capital is injected in SIS and SIS is not o
operation stage yet by the end of 2009.

Senao International HK Limited (SIHK) was estab#idiby SIS in 2009. SIHK will engage mainly in the
sales of telecommunication business; however, piatas injected in SIHK and SIHK is not on opéoat
stage yet by the end of 2009.

Chunghwa established Chunghwa International Yelages Co., Ltd. (“CIYP") in January 2007. CIYP
engages mainly in yellow pages sales and adveriseservices.
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CHIEF Telecom Inc. (“CHIEF”) was incorporated in 919 CHIEF engages mainly in internet
communication and internet date center (“IDC”) #m¥v Chunghwa acquired 70% shares of CHIEF on
September 2006.

Unigate Telecom Inc. (“Unigate”) was established ®HIEF in 1999. Unigate engages mainly in
telecommunication and information software service.

CHIEF Telecom (Hong Kong) Limited (“CHIEF (HK)") vgaestablished by CHIEF in 2003. CHIEF (HK)
engages mainly in internet communication and irtedata center (“IDC”) service. On August 20, 2009
the stockholders of CHIEF (HK) resolved to dissol@éllEF (HK). CHIEF (HK) will enter into
liquidation process upon receiving the local goweent authorization. This procedure is still in the
application phase as of the date of the audit tepor

Chief International Corp. (“CIC”) was established GHIEF in 2008. CIC engages mainly in internet
communication and internet data center (“IDC”) sg9.

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. (“CHSI") wasorporated in 2002. CHSI engages mainly in
providing communication and information integratiservices. Chunghwa has acquired 100% shares of
CHSI in December 2007.

Concord Technology Co., Ltd. (“Concord”), a subasigliof CHSI, was incorporated in 2006. Concord
engages mainly in investment.

Glory Network System Service (Shanghai) Co., Lt&NSS (Shanghai)”), a subsidiary of Concord, was
incorporated in 2006. GNSS (Shanghai) engages Iynainplanning and designing of systems and
communications and information integration service®n March 20, 2009, the stockholders of CHSI
resolved to dissolve GNSS (Shanghai). On July2B®9, the board of directors of CHSI revoked the
original resolution of dissolution.

Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. (“CHTG”) was incorgied in 2004. CHTG engages mainly in
international data and internet services and Idatadce call wholesales to carriers. Chunghwa ieedju
100% shares of CHTG in December 2007.

Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. (“DHT”) was incorporated2004. DHT engages mainly in international
telecommunications, IP fictitious internet and it transfer services. Chunghwa acquired 100%esha
of DHT in December 2007.

Spring House Entertainment Inc. (“SHE”) was incogted in 2000. SHE engages mainly in network
services, producing digital entertainment contems broadband visual sound terrace developmentE SH
was an equity method investee before Chunghwarastaiontrol interest over it in January 2008.

Chunghwa established Light Era Development Co., (tcED”) in January 2008. LED engages mainly
in development of property for rent and sale.

LED signed the contract with Good Neighbor Labuandihgs Ltd. to acquire 100% ownership interest of
Yao Yong Real Property. The consideration for trasisaction is $2,793,667 thousand in cash toiexqu
83,290 thousand shares on March 1, 2010. Yao Yew Property Co., Ltd. engages mainly in real
estate leasing business.

Chunghwa established Chunghwa Telecom SingaporelLRie (“CHTS”) in July 2008, CHTS engages
mainly in telecommunication wholesale, interneinsfar services, international data, long distanalé c
wholesales to carriers and the world satellite iess.

Chunghwa established Chunghwa Telecom Japan Ga.,(IGHTJ”) in October 2008. CHTJ engages

mainly in telecommunication business, informatiorogessing and information providing service,
development and sale of software and consultingi@s in telecommunication.
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InfoExplorer Co., Ltd. (“IFE”) was incorporated 2008. IFE engages mainly in information system
planning and maintenance, software development, iafatmation technology consultation services.
Chunghwa acquired 49% shares of IFE on Januar@@ 2nd has control over IFE by obtaining half of
seats of the board of directors of IFE on Janu@r2209.

Chunghwa Investment Co., Ltd. (“CHI") was estaldidhin 2002. CHI engages mainly in professional

investing in telecommunication business, and tetenanication valued-added services. Chunghwa
acquired additional 40% of the shares of CHI ont&aper 9, 2009 for $758,709 thousand. Chunghwa
increased its ownership interest in CHI from 4998986 and became the parent company of CHI. As a
result of additional acquisition of CHI, the acctiof CHI and its subsidiaries are included in the

consolidated financial statements starting fromt&aper 9, 2009.

Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. (“CHPT")swestablished in 2005 as the subsidiary of CHI.
CHPT engages mainly in production and marketinggimiconductor testers and printed circuit board.

Chunghwa Investment Holding Company (“CIHC”) wadae8shed by CHI in 2004. CIHC engages
mainly in general investment activities.

CHI One Investment Co., Ltd. (COIl) was establishgdCHI in 2009. COI engages mainly in investment
activities. There was no capital injection by émel of 2009. The capital injection made in Jan2&3i0
was amounted to $14,438 thousand.

Chunghwa has established New Prospect Investmeuitings Ltd. (“New Prospect”) and Prime Asia
Investments Group Ltd. (“Prime Asia“) in March 20dgut not on operation stage yet. Both holding
companies are operating as investment companie€hundghwa has 100% ownership right in an amount
of US$1 in each holding company by the end of 2009.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company fi@l2 and 27,165 employees, respectively.

The following diagram presents information regagdihe relationship and ownership percentages betwee
Chunghwa and its subsidiaries as of December 319:20

Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.
(Chunghwa)
28.81% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 56.04% 100% 69.36% 100% 49.07% 89% 100% 100%
Senao Chunghwa || Chunghwa|[ Chunghwa Spring Hous : CHIEF Chunghwa || InfoExplorer ({ Chunghwa ||New Prospeq| Prime Asia
International| International| Telecom System C.P;ggsxa ngggr?]wgo Entertainmer DI(;\I/getI](t)Er:]aen Telecom Inc|| Telecom Co,, Ltd. Investment|| Investmentd| Investment
Co., Ltd. |[Yellow Pagefl Singapore || Integration | 5 5p21" 1nc Ltd Inc. Co Etd (¢‘CHIEF") || Japanco. || CIFE" Co., Ltd. |[Holdings Ltd|| Group Ltd.
(SENAQ’) || Co. . I Pre. Lid. || Co., it |l Gn/mon™ |l (pprr) (“SHE") (LEDY) Ltd. (‘CHI") (‘New (“Prime
(“CIYP") (cHTS") || (‘cHsI) (“CHTJ") Prospect) Asia’)
100% Ts.ee% |
100%
100% 100% 100% 53.74% 100%
B | e
International Technology] ?Uec_om ne H ee(lz(om Internationa cohpTy | Investment Holdin
(Samoa) Co., Ltd. (‘Unigate”) ||( ong Kona) (corp. (-cic Company (“CIHC")
HO(Ifjsng,,)Ltd (“Concord”) (né;n:heEF
" 100%
(HK)")
CHI One
0, 0/
100% 100% Investment Co.,
Senao Glory Network Ltd. ("COI)
International System Service
HK Limited (Shanghai) Co.
(‘SHK") Ltd. (“GNSS
(Shanghai)”)
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Chunghwa together with its subsidiaries are hef@inaeferred to collectively as the “Company”.
Minority interests in the aforementioned subsidiariare presented as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity.

. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying consolidated financial statemermse prepared in conformity with the Guidelines
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports bgufities Issuers and accounting principles gelyeral
accepted in the ROC (“ROC GAAP”). The preparatafnconsolidated financial statements requires
management to make reasonable estimates and agsmsmut allowances for doubtful accounts, valuation
allowances on inventories, depreciation of propgptgnt and equipment, impairment of assets, banuse
paid to employees, directors and supervisors, pergans and income tax which are inherently uagert
Actual results may differ from these estimates. e Bignificant accounting policies are summarized as
follows:

Principle of Consolidation

The Company accounts for business combinationsdardance with the requirements of the Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 25, “Businessfinations” - the accounting treatment of purchase
method when acquiring the information of its sulzsids.

The accompanying consolidated financial stateméardside the accounts of all directly and indirectly
majority owned subsidiaries of the Company, and dbeounts of investees in which the Company’s
ownership percentage is less than 50% but overhwthe Company has a controlling interest. All
significant intercompany transactions and balaacesliminated upon consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements for the y&ated December 31, 2009 include the accounts of
Chunghwa, SENAO, SIS, SIHK, CIYP, CHIEF, UnigateHlEF (HK), CIC, CHSI, Concord, GNSS
(Shanghai), CHTG, DHT, SHE, LED, CHTS, CHTJ, IFEHICCHPT, CIHC, COIl, New Prospect and
Prime Asia. The consolidated financial statemdatsthe year ended December 31, 2008 include the
accounts of Chunghwa, SENAO, CIYP, CHIEF, Unigai¢jlIEF (HK), CIC, CHSI, Concord, GNSS
(Shanghai), CHTG, DHT, SHE, LED, CHTS, CHTJ, Newsfrect and Prime Asia.

For foreign subsidiaries using their local curremsytheir functional currency, assets and liabgitare
translated in New Taiwan dollars at the exchangesra effect on the balance sheet date; stockrslde
equity accounts are translated into New Taiwanagelht historical exchange rates and income stateme
accounts are translated into New Taiwan dollaes/atage exchange rates during the year.

The entities in the “Consolidated Financial Statetsef Affiliated Enterprises” are the same as ¢hios
the consolidated financial statements; thus, nsalhated financial statements of Chunghwa andiatts

will be compiled. The information needed in thenswolidated financial statements of Chunghwa and
affiliates is enclosed in the consolidated finahsiatements

Classification of Current and Noncurrent Assets and.iabilities

Current assets are assets expected to be contertagh, sold or consumed within one year fromrizada
sheet date. Current liabilities are obligationpested to be settled within one year from balareet
date. Assets and liabilities that are not clasdifias current are noncurrent assets and liabilities
respectively.

LED engages mainly in development of property fentrand sale. The assets are liabilities of LED
related to property development within its opemtaycle which are over one year is classified aseot
items. For assets and liabilities related to prigpdevelopment over its operating cycle are cfessias
noncurrent items.
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Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents is commercial paper with matgritiethree months or less from the date of acdisit
The carrying amount approximates fair value.

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value Thraugh Profit or Loss

Financial instruments classified as financial assetfinancial liabilities at fair value throughafit or loss
(“FVTPL") include financial assets or financial liidities held for trading and those designated Bs a
FVTPL on initial recognition. The Company recogrtza financial asset or a financial liability whee
Company becomes a party to the contractual prowssad the financial instrument. A financial asiet
derecognized when the Company loses control ofcdtstractual rights over the financial asset. A
financial liability is derecognized when the obliga specified in the relevant contract is discleakg
cancelled or expired.

Financial instruments at FVTPL are initially measiat fair value. Transaction costs directly httrable

to the acquisition of financial assets or finandmdbilities at FVTPL are recognized as expenses@asred.
Financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTRLe remeasured at fair value, subsequently withgdsin

fair value recognized in earnings. Cash dividemd®ived subsequently (including those receivethén
period of investment) are recognized as income. dérecognition of a financial asset or a financial
liability, the difference between its carrying amowand the sum of the consideration received and
receivable or consideration paid and payable isgeiezed in earnings. A regular way purchase ar efl
financial assets is accounted for using trade aateunting.

Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for hedgeounting is classified as financial assets rarfcial
liabilities held for trading. When the fair valigepositive, the derivative is recognized as arfaial asset;
when the fair value is negative, the derivativeeisognized as a financial liability.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are initiallgcognized at fair value plus transaction costs Hrat
directly attributable to the acquisition. Changefair value from subsequent remeasurement ar@r e

as a separate component of stockholders’ equithhe dorresponding accumulated gains or losses are
recognized in earnings when the financial asseferecognized from the balance sheet. A regular way
purchase or sale of financial assets is accouotedgsing trade date accounting.

The recognition and derecognition of availabledate financial assets are similar to those of firen
assets at FVTPL.

Fair values are determined as follows: Listedlstect closing prices at the balance sheet datm-end
mutual funds - at net asset values at the baldreet slate; bonds - quoted at prices provided byl #hean
GreTai Securities Market; and financial assets famahcial liabilities without quoted prices in actiae
market - at values determined using valuation tieglas.

Cash dividends are recognized in earnings on thaiveotend date, except for the dividends declarefdite
acquisition which are treated as a reduction okstment cost. Stock dividends are recorded as an
increase in the number of shares and do not affeestment income. The total number of shares
subsequent to the increase of stock dividendsad ey recalculate cost per share.

An impairment loss is recognized when there is ahje evidence that the financial asset is impairell

in a subsequent period, the amount of the impaitritms decreases, for equity securities, the pusiyo
recognized impairment loss is reversed to the éxrthe decrease and recorded as an adjustment to
stockholders’ equity; for debt securities, the amaf the decrease is recognized in earnings, geavihat

the decrease is clearly attributable to an evemtiwbccurred after the impairment loss was recaghiz
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Held-to-maturity Financial Assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried abdired cost using the effective interest metho@ihose
financial assets are initially recognized at faitue plus transaction costs that are directlytattable to the
acquisition. Gains and losses are recognizeckdatirtte of derecognition, impairment or amortizatiom\

regular way purchase or sale of financial assedsdsunted for using trade date accounting.

If there is objective evidence which indicates thdihancial asset is impaired, a loss is recoghizdf, in

a subsequent period, the amount of the impairnuest decreases and the decrease is clearly athiibtita

an event which occurred after the impairment loas wecognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed to the extent of the decreasee rétersal may not result in a carrying amount that
exceeds the amortized cost that would have beenmlieted as if no impairment loss had been recognize

Revenue Recognition, Account Receivables and Allowee for Doubtful Receivables

Revenues are recognized when they are realizegalizable and earned. Revenues are realized or
realizable and earned when the Company has persuagdence of an arrangement, the goods have been
delivered or the services have been rendered tous@wmer, the sales price is fixed or determinabie
collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the cereiidn received or receivable and represents atsoun
agreed between the Company and the customers éatsgenld in the normal course of business, net of
sales discounts and volume rebates. For tradéeveddes due within one year from the balance stat,

as the nominal value of the consideration to beived approximates its fair value and transactiams
frequent, fair value of the consideration is notedmined by discounting all future receipts using a
imputed rate of interest.

Usage revenues from fixed-line services (includimcal, domestic long distance and internationalglon
distance), cellular services, Internet and dateices, and interconnection and call transfer feesifother
telecommunications companies and carriers areddiiearrears and are recognized based upon miofites
traffic processed when the services are providetaordance with contract terms.

The costs of providing services are recognizechasried. Incentives to third party dealers foricidg
business which are payable when the end user anteran airtime contract are recognized in mariggti
expenses as incurred.

Other revenues are recognized as follows: (a)tiome-subscriber connection fees (on fixed-line &)

are deferred and recognized over the average edetistomer service periods, (b) monthly fees (on
fixed-line services, wireless and Internet and dasdevices) are accrued every month, and (c) prepaid
services (fixed line, cellular and Internet) areagnized as income based upon actual usage bynoeisto

or when the right to use those services expires.

Where the Company enters into transactions whigblwe both the provision of air time bundled with
products such as 3G data card and handset, totadidewation received from handsets in these
arrangements is allocated and measured usingafraiscounting within the arrangement based onivelat
fair values limited to the amount that is not cngént upon the delivery of other items or services.

Where the Company sells products to third partiulzel phone stores the Company records the disdet s
of the products, typically handsets, as gross newvemhen the Company is the primary obligor in the
arrangement and when title is passed and the piodue accepted by the stores.

An allowance for doubtful receivables is provideglsbéd on a review of the collectability of accounts

receivable. The Company determines the amounimfi@nce for doubtful receivables by examining the
aging analysis of outstanding accounts receivable.
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Inventories

Inventories including merchandise and work-in-pescare stated at the lower of cost (weighted-agerag
cost) or net realizable value item by item, exdepthose that may be appropriate to group itemsraflar

or related inventories. Net realizable value s déistimated selling price of inventories less siineated
costs of completion and costs necessary to makesalee The calculation of the cost of inventory is
derived using the weighted-average method.

Inventories of LED are stated at the lower of awshet realizable value. Prepayments for licensind
other miscellaneous costs have been capitalizgehdsof inventory. Profit shall be recognized inl f
when the land is sold, provided (a) the profit éedminable, that is, the collectability of theesaprice is
reasonably assured or the amount that will notdiectible can be estimated, and (b) the earnimgsgss
is virtually completed.

Investments Accounted for using Equity Method

Investments in companies in which the Company ésescsignificant influence over the operating and
financial policy decisions are accounted for by #mguity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially stated at cost and subsatiyedjusted for its proportionate share in thee@nings

of the investee companies. Any cash dividendsivedeare recognized as a reduction in the carrying
value of the investments.

Gains or losses on sales from the Company to eduéthod investees wherein Chunghwa exercises
significant influence over these equity investers deferred in proportion to the Company’s owngrshi
percentage in the investees until such gains @efsare realized through transactions with thindigsa
Gains or losses on sales from equity method ingseste Chunghwa are deferred in proportion to
Chunghwa’s ownership percentages in the investegistivey are realized through transactions witindth
parties.

When the Company subscribes for additional investt®res at a percentage different from its exjstin

ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amadirthe investment in the investee differs from the

amount of the Company share of the investee’s yquithe Company records such a difference as an
adjustment to long-term investments with the cqoesling amount charged or credited to additional

paid-in capital to the extent available, with tleamce charged to retained earnings.

Financial Assets Carried at Cost

Investments in equity instruments that do not reageioted price in an active market and whose &lires
cannot be reliably measured such as non-publialyetl stocks are measured at their original co$thete
is objective evidence which indicates that a finalnasset is impaired, a loss is recognized. /Asegbent
reversal of such impairment loss is not allowed.

The accounting treatment for cash dividends andkstlividends arising from financial assets carréd
cost is the same as that for cash dividends arzk stividends arising from available-for-sale finahc
assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cast @lrevaluation increment, if any, less accumdlate
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. ifiterest costs that are directly attributable te th

acquisition, construction of a qualifying asset aapitalized as property, plant and equipment. o¥aj
renewals and betterments are capitalized, whil@t@aance and repairs are expensed as incurred.
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When an indication of impairment is identified, aeycess of the carrying amount of an asset over its
recoverable amount is recognized as a loss. Ifdheverable amount increases in a subsequentdperio
the amount previously recognized as impairment didng reversed and recognized as a gain. However,
the adjusted amount may not exceed the carryinguatnthat would have been determined, net of
depreciation, as if no impairment loss had beeageized.

An impairment loss on a revalued asset is chamyédrirealized revaluation increment” under equitytie
extent available, with the balance is recognized &ss in earnings. If the recoverable amountemses

in a subsequent period, the amount previously miged as impairment loss could be reversed and
recognized as a gain, with the remaining creditetihrealized revaluation increment”.

Depreciation expense is computed using the strdilghimethod over the following estimated servives:
land improvements - 10 to 30 years; buildings -t4060 years; computer equipment - 3 to 10 years;
telecommunication equipment - 5 to 30 years; trartaion equipment - 5 to 10 years; and miscellaseo
equipment - 2 to 12 years.

Upon sale or disposal of property, plant and eqgeipinthe related cost, accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses and any unrealize@luation increment are deducted from the
corresponding accounts, and any gain or loss redaad non-operating gains or losses in the yesalefor
disposal.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets mainly include 3G Concession puden software, patents and goodwill.

The 3G Concession is valid through December 31820The 3G Concession fees is amortized on a
straight-line basis from the date operations conueethrough the date the license expires. Computer
software costs and patents are amortized usingtthght-line method over the estimated usefulslioé
2-20 years.

The Company adopted the newly released StatementSinancial Accounting Standards No. 37,
“Intangible Assets.” Expenditure on research shallexpensed as incurred. Development Costs are
capitalized when those costs meet relative criterid are amortized using the straight-line metheg o
estimated useful lives. Development costs thatataneet relative criteria shall be expensed asriad.

When an indication of impairment is identified atlean goodwill, any excess of the carrying amaoamt
an asset over its recoverable amount is recograzed loss. If the recoverable amount increases in
subsequent period, the amount previously recogragdchpairment would be reversed and recognized as
gain. However, the adjusted amount may not exdbed carrying amount that would have been
determined, as if no impairment loss had been rEzed.

Goodwill represents the excess of the considergb@d over the fair value of identifiable net asset
acquired. Goodwill is tested for impairment anhual If an event occurs or circumstances changehvhi
indicates that the fair value of goodwill is belds/ carrying amount, an impairment loss is recogtiz A
subsequent reversal of such impairment loss isliomved.

Idle Assets

Idle assets are carried at the lower of recoveratmleunt or carrying amount.

Pension Costs

For defined benefit pension plans, net periodicspan benefit cost is recorded in the consolidated

statement oincome and includes service cost, interest cogpleered return on plan assets, amortization of
prior service costs, amortization of pension ggliosses) and curtailment or settlement gainsésps
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The Company recognizes into income, any unrecodraotuarial net gains or losses that exceed 10% of
the larger of projected benefit obligations or pasets, defined as the “corridor”.  Amounts ingtie
10% corridor are amortized over the average remgiservice life of active plan participants. Aciah

net gains and losses occur when actual experigffeesdrom any of the many assumptions used toeal
the plans. Differences between the expected amdlaeturns on plan assets and changes in intexest
which affect the discount rate used to value ptegplan obligations, can have a significant impacthe
calculation of pension net gains and losses froan y@year.

The curtailments and settlement gains (losses)tegsfrom the Chunghwa’s early retirement programs.
Curtailment/settlement gains or losses are equ#td¢ochanges of underfunded status plus the agteo r
portion of the unrecognized prior service costeengnized net gains (losses), and unrecognizesitian
obligations/assets, before the settlement/curtaitmevent multiplied by the percentage reduction in
projected benefit obligation.

The projected benefit obligation represents thea@l present value of benefits expected to bd ppon
retirement based on estimated future compensatiaid.

The carrying amount of accrued pension liabilityodd be the sum of the following amounts: (a)
projected benefit obligation as of balance shett,dh) minus (plus) unamortized actuarial lossng4c)
minus unamortized prior service cost, and (d) mitlus fair value of plan assets. If the amount
determined by above calculation is negative, ¥iesved as prepaid pension cost. The prepaid pensio
cost is measured at the lower of: (a) the amoeterchined above, and (b) the sum of the following
amounts: (i) unamortized actuarial loss, (i) uoatized prior service cost, and (iii) the preseatue of
refunds from the plan or reductions in future cimttions to the plan.

The measurement of benefit obligations and netogari cost (income) is based on estimates and
assumptions approved by the company’s managemehtasicompensation, age and seniority, as well as
certain assumptions, including estimates of distaates, expected return on plan assets and rate of
compensation increases.

For employees under defined contribution pensi@mgl pension costs are recorded based on the actual
contributions made to employees’ individual pensionounts during their service periods.

Expense Recognition

The costs of providing services are recognizednasried. The cost includes incentives to thirdtypar
dealers for inducing business which are payablenvithe end user enters into an airtime contract.

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is recorded at cost and shown adwction to stockholders’ equity. Upon canceliatod
treasury stock, the treasury stock account is redland the common stock and capital surplus aerses
on a pro rata basis. If capital surplus is noficieht for debiting purpose, the difference is e to
retained earnings.

Share-based Compensation

Employee stock options granted on or after Jantia®008 are accounted for using fair value metmod i
accordance with under SFAS No. 39, “Accounting $trare-based Payment.” The adoption of SFAS
No. 39 did not have any impact on the Company.

Employee stock options granted between Januar§@4 and December 31, 2007 were accounted for under
the interpretations issued by the Accounting Reteand Development Foundation (the “ARDF”). The
Company adopted the intrinsic value method, undeichvcompensation cost was amortized over the
vesting period.
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Income Tax

The Company applies inter-period allocations feriitcome tax, whereby deferred income tax assets an
liabilities are recognized for the tax effects emporary differences and unused tax credits. Vialua
allowances are provided to the extent, if any, thit more likely than not that deferred income #ssets
will not be realized. A deferred tax asset oriligbis classified as current or noncurrent in aatance
with the classification of its related asset obility. However, if a deferred tax asset or li#lgidoes not
relate to an asset or liability in the financiatsiments, then it is classified as either curremomcurrent
based on the expected length of time before @atized or settled.

Any tax credits arising from purchases of machineguipment and technology, research and develdpmen
expenditures, personnel training, and investmenisiportant technology-based enterprises are rézegn
using the flow-through method.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are addo or deducted from the current year’s tax [siow.

Income taxes (10%) on undistributed earnings ierckd in the year of stockholders approval whictineés
year subsequent to the year the earnings are gedera

Foreign-currency Transactions

Foreign-currency transactions are recorded in Naiwdn dollars at the rates of exchange in effectwh
the transactions occur. Exchange gains or lossgged from foreign-currency transactions or mongta
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cwies are recognized in earnings. At the balaheets
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominatddreign currencies are revalued at prevailinghexge
rates with the resulting gains or losses recognizearnings.

The financial statements of foreign equity investaad consolidate subsidiaries are translatedNety
Taiwan dollars at the following exchange rates. seéis and liabilities - spot rates at year-end,;
stockholders’ equity - historical rates, income amgenses - average rates during the year. Th#ings
translation adjustments are recorded as a sepamaigonent of stockholders’ equity.

Hedge Accounting

A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accaumtnly if, all of the following conditions are mé#a) at

the inception of the hedge, there is formal docuat@n of the hedging relationship and the entitigk
management objective and strategy for undertakireghedge; (b) the hedge is expected to be highly
effective in achieving offsetting changes in faaue attributable to the hedged risk, consistentt the

risk management strategy documented for that pdatidiedging relationship; (c) the effectivenesshef
hedge can be reliably measured; (d) the hedgesesssd on an ongoing basis and determined actaally
have been highly effective throughout the financgglorting periods for which the hedge was desgphat

The gain or loss from remeasuring the hedgingunstnt at fair value and the gain or loss on theybed
item attributable to the hedged risk are recognimezhrnings.

The hedging items that do not meet the criterighfidge accounting were classified as financialtagse
financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss.

. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The Company early adopted the Statement of Finandt@ounting Standards No. 41 “Operating
Segments” (“SFAS No. 41") starting from SeptembgR009. This Statement supersedes the Statement

of Financial Accounting Standards No. 20 “Segmeepdtting”. For comparative purpose, the segment
information for the year ended December 31, 2008 pvasented in accordance with SFAS No. 41.
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The Company adopted the newly-revised StatementsFioancial Accounting Standards No. 10,
“Accounting for Inventories,” (“SFAS No. 10") begiing from January 1, 2009, which requires inve®ri

to be stated at the lower of cost (weighted-averxaggt) or net realizable value item by item, exdept
those that may be appropriate to group items oflainor related inventories. The inventory-related
incomes and expenses shall be classified as apgiaist. The adoption of the revised SFAS No.désd
not have significant impact on the Company’s cadstéd net income and basic earnings per sharer (aft
income tax) for the year ended December 31, 200e Company reclassified non-operating losses of
$58,170 thousand to operating costs for the yededDecember 31, 2008.

In March 2007, the ARDF issued an InterpretatioF098 that requires companies to recognize bonuses

paid to employees, directors and supervisors agxgense rather than an appropriation of earnings
beginning from January 1, 2008.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31

2009 2008
Cash
Cash on hand $ 142,319 $ 148,216
Bank deposits 8,198,905 12,829,954

Negotiable certificate of deposit, annual yielceratanging from
0.25%-0.37% and 0.31%-2.45% for 2009 and 2008,
respectively. 63,350,000 48,486,241
71,691,224 61,464,411

Cash equivalents
Commercial paper, annual yield rate - ranging f&9%-0.24%
and 0.70%-1.55% for 2009 and 2008, respectively 1,568,266 19,823,754

73,259,490 $ 81,288,165

. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

December 31

2009 2008
Derivatives - financial assets
Currency swap contracts $ 6,677 $ -
Index future contracts - 242,868
Forward exchange contracts - 15,710
Designated financial assets at fair value througfitpr loss 6,677 258,578
Convertible bonds 33,842 -

$ 40519 $ 258,578

Derivatives - financial liabilities

Forward exchange contracts $ 828 $ 95,963
Index future contracts - 11,381

$ 828 $ 107,344

-20 -



Chunghwa entered into investment management agreeméth well-known financial institutions (fund
managers) to manage its investment portfolios 620 The investment portfolios managed by thesd fun
managers aggregated to an original amount of US®Q00thousand. Chunghwa terminated the
investment management agreements on March 2, 20689asked fund managers to dispose all the
investment portfolios. The fund managers had disdaall investment portfolios before June 23, 2009
and returned the proceeds to Chunghwa.

The Company entered into currency swap contraatejard exchange contracts and index future corstract
to reduce its exposure to foreign currency risk gadability in operating results due to fluctuat#oin
exchange rates and stock prices. However, themfartioned derivatives did not meet the criteria fo
hedge accounting and were classified as finanss#ta or financial liabilities held for trading.

Outstanding currency swap contracts and forwartiaxge contracts as of December 31, 2009 and 2008:

Contract Amount

Currency Maturity Period (In Thousands)

December 31, 2009

Currency swap contracts USD/NTD 2010.01-2010.04 USD45,000/NTD1,448,160

Forward exchange contracts - buiNTD/USD 2010.01 NTD 86,657

December 31, 2008

Buy NTD/USD 2009.01 NTD 131,412

Sell EUR/USD 2009.01 EUR 4,240
JPY/USD 2009.01 JPY 446,200
GBP/USD 2009.01 GBP 1,880
USD/NTD 2009.01 USD 96,000
USD/JPY 2009.01 USD 1,544
USD/EUR 2009.01 UsD 777
USD/GBP 2009.01 uUsD 124

The Company did not have any outstanding indexéutontracts on December 31, 2009.

Outstanding index future contracts on DecembefB8@8 were as follows:

Contract
Amount
Maturity Period Units (In Thousands)
December 31, 2008
AMSTERDAM IDX FUT 2009.01 13 EUR 642
CAC40 10 EURO FUT 2009.01 14 EUR 451
DAX INDEX FUTURE 2009.03 3 EUR 356
IBEX 35 INDX FUTR 2009.01 7 EUR 633
MINI S&P/MIB FUT 2009.03 37 EUR 712
FTSE 100 IDX FUT 2009.03 19 GBP 815
TOPIX INDEX FUTURE 2009.03 35 JPY 283,990
S&P 500 FUTURE 2009.03 16 Usb 3,541
S&P 500 EMINI FUTURE 2009.03 53 USD 2,346

As of December 31, 2008, the deposits paid fonirfdeure contracts were $242,768 thousand.
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In September 2007, Chunghwa entered into a 10-yeaign currency derivative contract with Goldman
Sachs Group Inc. (“Goldman”) and valuations weredenhiweekly starting from September 20, 2007
which were 260 valuation periods totally. Undee tierms of the contract, if the NT dollar/US dollar
exchange rate was less than NT$31.50 per US daflany two consecutive bi-weekly valuation dates
during the valuation period starting from Octobe2@07 to September 5, 2017, Chunghwa was regtored
make a cash payment to Goldman. The settlementirames determined by the difference between the
applicable exchange rates and the base amount $,0@ thousand. Conversely, if the NT dollar/lUS
dollar exchange rate was above NT$31.50 per U&do#ing the same valuation methodology, Goldman
would have a settlement obligation to Chunghwardgted using a base amount of US$2,000 thousand.
Further, if the exchange rate was at or above NT&B8ger US dollar starting from December 12, 2007 a
any time, the contract would be terminated at thmé. In accordance with the terms of the contract
Chunghwa deposited US$3,000 thousand with Goldmiam annual yield rate of 8%. On October 21,
2008, the exchange rate was above NT$32.70 peroU,dso the contract was terminated at that time.

Net gain arising from financial assets and lialetitat fair value through profit or loss for theaye ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $72,315 thousamtuding realized settlement loss of $26,328
thousand and valuation gain of $98,643 thousant),$85,929 thousand (including realized settlement
loss of $38,127 thousand and valuation gain of ¥&Blthousand) respectively.

. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

December 31

2009 2008
Open-end mutual funds $ 16,831,657 $ 13,441,639
Domestic listed stocks 499,987 -
Corporate bonds 103,323 -
Real estate investment trust fund 102,122 194,226
Foreign listed stocks - 546,520

$ 17,537,089 $ 14,182,385

Movements of unrealized gain (loss) on availablesfe financial assets were as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008
Balance, beginning of year $(2,264,932) $ 37,420
Impact on acquisition of subsidiaries 2,147 -
Recognized in stockholders’ equity 1,685,169 (3,185,230)
Transferred to profit or loss 130,487 882,878
Balance, end of year $ (447,12» $ (2,264,93p

Global economic and financial circumstances hawmitantly changed. As a result, Chunghwa
determined that the impairment losses of availfdresale financial assets is other-than-temporary i
nature, and recorded impairment losses of $85,8d8@sand and $1,139,105 thousand for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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7. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS

December 31

2009 2008

Corporate bonds, nominal interest rate ranging f0or6%-4.75%

and 1.93%-2.95% for 2009 and 2008, respectivefgctle

interest rate ranging from 0.45%-2.95% and 1.8096% for

2009 and 2008, respectively $ 4,531,699 $ 2,635,172
Bank debentures, nominal interest rate ranging ftdi%-2.11%

and 2.11%-3.85% for 2009 and 2008, respectivefgctie

interest rate ranging from 1.14%-2.90% and 2.33960%,

respectively 497,558 1,137,005
Collateralized loan obligation, nominal and effeetinterest rate

was 2.18% for 2008 - 41,360
5,029,257 3,813,537
Less: Current portion 1,099,595 769,435

$ 3,929,662 $ 3,044,102

8. ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008
Balance, beginning of year $ 3,050,691 $ 3,430,157
Provision for doubtful accounts 454,598 500,898
Impact on acquisition of subsidiaries 630 983
Accounts receivable written off (707,240 (881,347
Balance, end of year $ 2,798,679 $ 3,050,691

9. OTHER MONETARY ASSETS-CURRENT

December 31

2009 2008
Accrued custodial receipts from other carriers $ 432,569 $ 484,224
Other receivables 1,407,176 1,742,032

$ 1,839,745 $ 2,226,256
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10. INVENTORIES, NET

December 31

2009 2008
Merchandise $ 2,033,571 $ 2,305,302
Work in process 647,212 319,324

2,680,783 2,624,626
Land held under development 706,176 706,176
Land held for development 563,402 531,501
Payment for construction 98,846 40,195

$ 4,049,207  $ 3,902,498

The operating costs related to inventories were 1883483 thousand (including the valuation loss on
inventories of $56,055 thousand) and $24,283,128s&nd (including valuation loss on inventories of
$58,961 thousand) for the years ended Decemb&089, and 2008, respectively.

Land held under development on December 31, 2062808 was for Wan-Xi project which is expected
to be completed in 2012.

11. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

December 31

2009 2008
Spare parts $ 2,348,894 $ 2,509,979
Prepaid rents 811,904 843,420
Prepaid expenses 651,777 681,672
Miscellaneous 507,125 520,969

$ 4319700 $ 4,556,040
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12. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD

December 31

2009 2008
% of % of
Carrying Owner- Carrying Owner-
Amount ship Amount ship
Non-listed
Taiwan International Standard Electronics Co.,

Ltd. (“TISE”) $ 427,810 40 $ 593,441 40
ST-2 Satellite Ventures Pte., Ltd.(“SSVP”) 408,341 38 108,212 38
Senao Networks, Inc. (“SNI”) 288,407 41 264,271 45
Viettel-CHT Co., Ltd. (“Viettel-CHT") 269,924 30 95,836 33
Skysoft Co., Ltd. (“SKYSOFT") 89,913 30 84,992 30
KingWay Technology Co., Ltd. (“KWT") 69,913 33 77,222 33
Tatung Technology Inc. 36,544 28 - -
So-net Entertainment Co., Ltd. (“So-net”) 30,920 30 - -
Chunghwa Investment Co., Ltd. (“CHI") - - 829,716 49
PandaMonium Company Ltd. - 43 - -

1,621,772 2,053,690
Prepayments for long-term investments -
InfoExplorer Co., Ltd.(“IFE") - - 283,500 -
$ 1,621,772 $ 2,337,190

ST-1 telecommunications satellite is expected beeckin 2011; therefore, CHTS and SingTelSat Ritel,
established a joint venture, ST-2 Satellite Vergree., Ltd. (“STS”) in Singapore in October 200®rder

to maintain the current service. By December 319 Chunghwa has invested $409,061 thousand in
STS. STS will engage in the installation and theration of ST-2 telecommunications satellite.

Chunghwa established Viettel-CHT Co., Ltd. with ¥ Co., Ltd. in Vietnam in April 2008, by invesy
NT$91,239 thousand cash. Chunghwa participatettiencapital increase of Viettel-CHT in September
2009, by investing $197,088 thousand cash butwiseoship interest of Viettel-CHT was decreased from
33% to 30%. Viettel-CHT engages mainly in IDC ses.

Chunghwa invested in KingWay Technology Co., LttKWT") in January 2008, for a purchase price of
$71,770 thousand. KWT engages mainly in publishiogks, data processing and software services.

PandaMonium Company Ltd. and Tatung Technology #&me.the subsidiaries of Chunghwa Investment
Co., Ltd. They engage mainly in making animatiarsl selling the product of SET TOP BOX,
respectively.

Chunghwa participated in So-net Entertainment Ciol,'s capital increase on April 3, 2009, by invegt
$60,008 thousand cash, and acquired 30% of iteshaiSo-net Entertainment Co., Ltd. engages mainly
online service and sale of computer hardware.

The carrying values of the equity investees as efdinber 31, 2009 and 2008 and the equity in eaning

for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008eseemined based on the audited financial statesnent
of the investees for the same years as the Company.
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13. FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST

Non-listed
Taipei Financial Center (“TFC")

December 31

Industrial Bank of Taiwan Il Venture Capital

Co., Ltd. (“IBT II")
Global Mobile Corp. (“GMC")
iD Branding Ventures (“iDBV")
Giga Solar Materials Corp.
Un Display Inc.
RPTI International (“RPTI")
Digimax Inc. (“DIG")
ChipSip Technology Co.
Superior Innovation Incubation
N.T.U. Innovation Incubation Corporation
Crystal Media Inc.
LightHouse Technology Co.
Join Well Technology Co.
Tatung Fine Chemicals Co.
Win Semiconductors Corp.
Huga Optotech Inc.
DelSolar Co.
J Touch Corporation
Taidoc Technology Corporation
3 Link Information Service Co., Ltd.
Subtron Technology Co.,
Cando Corporation
XinTec Inc.
Daxon technology Corporation

Essence Technology Solution, Inc. (“ETS")

eASPNet Inc.

Prepayments for long-term investments in stocks

Goa Tronics Inc.

Huga Optotech Inc.

Cando Corporation

Taipei Financial Center (“TFC")

2009 2008
% of % of
Carrying Owner- Carrying Owner-
Amount ship Amount ship
$ 1,789,530 12 $ 1,789,530 12
200,000 17 200,000 17
127,018 11 127,018 11
99,504 11 75,000 8
54,656 2 - -
46,000 3 - -
34,500 10 34,500 12
23,935 4 - -
23,247 3 - -
22,500 2 - -
12,000 9 12,000 9

11,642 5 -
10,982 - -
8,210 - -
7,762 - -
7,603 - - -
6,672 - -
5,388 - -
4,161 - - -
3,498 - -
3,450 10 3,450 10
3,394 - - -
3,282 - -
1,078 - - -
750 - - -
- 9 10,000 9
- 2 - 2

2,510,762 2,251,498
25,000 - - -
791 - - -
7 - - -
- 285,859 -

$ 2,536,560 $ 2,537,357

Chunghwa invested IBT Il in January 2008, for acpase price of $200,000 thousand. IBT Il completed
its incorporation on February 13, 2008 and engag@sly in investment activities.
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14.

Chunghwa invested in GMC in December 2007, for eclpase price of $168,038 thousand for 16,796
thousand shares. GMC engages mainly in wire corgation services and computer software wholesale
and circuit engineering. The National Communigagi@ommission (“NCC”") informed Chunghwa with
the Communication Letter (#0974102087) on Apri2Q08 that its investment in GMC was not authorized
by NCC, and notified Chunghwa on May 5, 2008 thlatii@hwa should dispose of its investment in GMC
no later than June 30, 2008, otherwise, NCC womd €hunghwa according to the Telecommunication
Act. In April 2008, Chunghwa disposed of a portiminits investment in GMC (4,100 thousand shares)
and filed an appeal to NCC to suspend the enforaemén July 2008, NCC resolved that according® t
Administrative Penalty Act, Chunghwa could not divef its investment in the short time period pdad
and that Chunghwa would not be subject to finesaed above. In October 2008, NCC revoked the
original decree about Chunghwa’s investment in GMisrefore, Chunghwa did not dispose of its
remaining holding in GMC.

After evaluating the financial assets carried atc@€hunghwa determined the investment in RPTI was
impaired and recognized an impairment loss of G Mousand for the year ended December 31, 2008.
RPTI completed a capital reduction to offset itdiaits and as a result the number of shares held by
Chunghwa was reduced from 9,234 thousand sha#3®b thousand shares. Subsequent to this capital
reduction, RPTI raised additional capital througisit contributions. Chunghwa did not participatéim
RPTI's capital increase plan; therefore, Chunghwe/sership of RPTI is decreased to 10%.

After evaluating the financial assets carried at,c@HI determined the investment in DIG was imgeir
and recognized an impairment loss of NT$10,2894hod for the year ended December 31, 2009.

After evaluating the financial assets carried atc€@€hunghwa determined the investment in ETS was
impaired and recognized an impairment loss of NT#10 thousand both in 2009 and 2008.

Chunghwa participated in TFC’'s capital increaseGotober 2008 and prepaid $285,859 thousand.
However, TFC is not expected to be able to colledugh amount of capital increase within a specific
period; therefore TFC’s board of directors held @etng on April 10, 2009 and resolved to withdrasv i
capital increase plan from Financial Supervisoryn@ussion, Executive Yuan (“FSC”). TFC returned
the prepayment to Chunghwa on May 8, 2009.

The above investments that do not have a quoteklatarice in an active market and whose fair vatss
not be reliably measured are carried at originat.co

OTHER MONETARY ASSETS-NONCURRENT
December 31
2009 2008
Piping Fund $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000

As part of the government’s effort to upgrade tRkisteng telecommunications infrastructure, Chunghwa
and other public utility companies were required theg ROC government to contribute a total of
$1,000,000 thousand to a Piping Fund administeyetthd Taipei City Government. This fund was used
to finance various telecommunications infrastruefomjects.

In January 2008, CHSI invested in Taiwan Goal Cal, (“TG”) for a purchase price of $30,000 thoudan
TG engages mainly in import and export activitiesrhachine wholesale, arms and ammunition products.
On March 17, 2008, the stockholders of TG resoliedlissolve TG at a special meeting. Therefore,
CHSI has reclassified its investment to other faialhassets and recognized a loss of $900 thousaurtide
three months ended March 31, 2008. As of Dece@bge2008, TG has completed its dissolution process.
CHSI received $29,585 thousand for the liquidatiad recognized a loss of $415 thousand in 2008.
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15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
December 31
2009 2008
Cost
Land $ 102,131,565 $ 101,460,017
Land improvements 1,535,066 1,494,398
Buildings 63,184,398 63,029,159
Computer equipment 16,343,774 16,130,398
Telecommunications equipment 656,016,086 650,204,202
Transportation equipment 2,113,053 2,406,111
Miscellaneous equipment 7,230,632 7,331,543
Total cost 848,554,574 842,055,828
Revaluation increment on land 5,800,909 5,810,650
854,355,483 847,866,478
Accumulated depreciation
Land improvements 951,240 898,156
Buildings 17,395,165 16,298,698
Computer equipment 12,149,757 11,846,090
Telecommunications equipment 518,608,726 503,425,455
Transportation equipment 1,885,512 2,195,401
Miscellaneous equipment 6,030,160 6,158,570
557,020,560 540,822,370
Construction in progress and advances relatedquisiton of
equipment 15,687,426 16,005,390
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 313,022,349 $ 323,049,498

Pursuant to the related regulation, Chunghwa redalts land owned as of April 30, 2000 based on the
publicly announced value on July 1, 1999. Thesalwations which have been approved by the Ministry
of Auditing resulted in increases in the carryirgues of property, plant and equipment of $5,986,07
thousand, liabilities for land value incrementad td $211,182 thousand, and stockholders’ equither
adjustments of $5,774,892 thousand.

The amendment to the Land Tax Act, relating todtiele to permanently lower land value incremetda|
went effective from February 1, 2005. In accordandth the lowered tax rates, Chunghwa recomputed
its land value incremental tax, and reclassified tbserve for land value incremental tax of $116,19
thousand to stockholders’ equity - other adjustsientAs of December 31, 2009, the unrealized
revaluation increment was decreased to $5,803l6&and by disposal revaluation assets.

Depreciation expense on property, plant and equipmere $35,114,106 thousand and $37,101,335
thousand for the years ended December 31, 2002@0f®] respectively. Capitalized interest expeose f
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 weretBa0sand and $1,916 thousand. The capitalized
interest rate were 1.165%-1.604% and 2.268%-2.9288pectively.

SHORT-TERM LOANS
December 31
2009 2008
Secured loans - annual rate - 0.81% for 2009 $ 488,000 $ -
Unsecured loans - annual rate - 1.15%-1.12% ar@¥d for 2009
and 2008, respectively 275,000 258,000
$ 763,000 $ 258,000
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17.

18.

19.

ACCRUED EXPENSES

December 31

2009 2008
Accrued salary and compensation 9,876,025 $ 9,253,899
Accrued franchise fees 2,224,104 2,368,996
Accrued employees’ bonus and remuneration to direcnd
supervisors 1,964,214 1,891,413
Other accrued expenses 3,384,571 2,831,394
$ 17,448914 $ 16,345,702
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
December 31
2009 2008
Advances from subscribers 6,908,417 $ 6,151,140
Payables to contractors 2,229,165 1,546,234
Amounts collected in trust for others 2,224,736 2,534,600
Payables to equipment suppliers 1,532,703 2,526,229
Refundable customers’ deposits 1,045,127 980,622
Miscellaneous 2,930,181 2,790,986
$ 16,870,329 $ 16,529,811
LONG-TERM LOANS (INCLUDING LONG-TERM LOANS - CU RRENT PORTION)
December 31
2009 2008
Unsecured loans - annual rate - 2.01%-2.04% fo®200 $ 309,777 $ -
Secured loans - annual rate - 1.00%-1.37% and 1602009 and
2008, respectively 28,656 37,840
338,433 37,840
Less: Current portion of long-term loans 117,181 8,440
$ 221,252 $ 29,400

CHIEF obtained an unsecured loan from Bank of TaiwaJanuary 2009. Interest and principal amount

are paid monthly from January 2009 and due in Jgri2(1 3.

SHE obtained a loan from the Industrial Developniguneau, Ministry of Economic Affairs and obtained
secured loan from Taiwan Business Bank. Intesesid monthly and the principal is paid every ¢hre
month from January 2009 and due in April 2013.

CHI obtained a secured loan from the E. Sun ComaleBank in December 2006. Interest and the
principal are payable monthly from January 2007 dnd December 2009. CHI obtained another loan
from the E. Sun Commercial Bank in February 200@terest and the principal are payable monthly from
March 2009 and due in February 2013.
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20. MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company classified LED’s assets and liabilitafs the construction operations as current and

21.

noncurrent according to the length of the operatiyaje of the construction operations. Maturityalgsis
of LED’s related assets and liabilities was asoiw8:
December 31, 2009
Within Over
One Year One Year Total
Assets
Inventories $ - $ 1,368,424 $ 1,368,424
Deferred expenses (classified as other current
assets) - 93,236 93,236
Restricted assets - 100,869 100,869
$ - $ 1,562,569 3 1,562,569
Liabilities
Trade notes and accounts payable $ 5,797 $ - $ 5,797
Advance from land and building (classified as
other current liabilities) - 328,317 328,317
$ 5,797 $ 328,317 $ 334,114
December 31, 2008
With in Over
One Year One Year Total
Assets
Inventories $ - $ 1,277,872 $ 1,277,872
Deferred expenses (classified as other current
assets) - 91,580 91,580
Restricted assets - 55,546 55,546
$ - $ 1424998 3 1,424,998
Liabilities
Trade notes and accounts payable $ 3,711 $ - $ 3,711
Advance from land and building (classified as
other current liabilities) - 226,567 226,567
$ 3,711 $ 226,567 $ 230,278

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Under Chunghwa'’s Articles of Incorporation, Chungfsvauthorized capital is $120,000,000,000, whsch i
divided into 12,000,000,000 common shares (at $i0vplue per share), among which 9,696,808,181

shares are issued and outstanding as of Decemp2033.
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On March 28, 2006, the board of directors apprdhedssuance of the 2 preferred shares, and the@10T
purchased the 2 preferred shares at par value ait Ap2006. In accordance with the Articles of
Incorporation of Chunghwa, the preferred sharesldvbe redeemed by Chunghwa three years from the
date of issuance at their par value. These pesfeshares expired on April 4, 2009 and were reddeme
April 6, 2009.

For the purpose of privatizing Chunghwa, the MOT@&ds1,109,750 thousand common shares of
Chunghwa in an international offering of securitieshe form of American Depositary Shares (“ADS")
amounting to 110,975 thousand units (one ADS remtesten common shares) on the New York Stock
Exchange on July 17, 2003. Afterwards, the MOTd 49350,682 thousand common shares in the form
of ADS amounting to 135,068 thousand units on Aud®@s 2005. Subsequently, the MOTC and Taiwan
Mobile Co., Ltd. sold 505,389 thousand and 58,9&fusand common shares of Chunghwa, respectively,
in the form of ADS totally amounting to 56,435 tisand units on September 29, 2006. The MOTC and
Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltd. have sold 3,024,780 thoaseaommon shares in the form of ADS amounting to
302,478 thousand units. As of December 31, 2008, dutstanding ADSs were 1,182,888 thousand
common shares, which equaled approximately 118 @8fisand units and represented 12.20% of
Chunghwa’s total outstanding common shares.

The ADS holders generally have the same rightsadtigations as other common stockholders, subfect t
the provision of relevant laws. The exercise afhstights and obligations shall comply with theatet
regulations and deposit agreement, which stipukaeong other things, that ADS holders can, through
deposit agents:

a. Exercise their voting rights,
b. Sell their ADSs, and
c. Receive dividends declared and subscribe tsfumnce of new shares.

Under the ROC Company Law, additional paid-in cpitay only be utilized to offset deficits. Foote
companies having no deficits, additional paid-ipita arising from capital surplus can be usechtyease
capital stock and distribute to stockholders inpartion to their ownership at the ex-dividend datélso,
such amounts can only be declared as a stock diidg Chunghwa at an amount calculated in accoedanc
with the provisions of existing regulations. Thambined amount of any portions capitalized each yea
may not exceed 10 percent of common stock issuétbwever, where a company undergoes an
organizational change (such as a merger, acquisitioreorganization) that results in the capitdlan of
undistributed earnings after the organizationahgeathe above restriction does not apply.

In addition, before distributing a dividend or madgiany other distribution to stockholders, Chungimuest

pay all outstanding taxes, recover any past loasesset aside a legal reserve equal to 10% ofeits n
income, and depending on its business needs oireaggents, may also set aside a special reserve. In
accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, m3d than 50% of the remaining earnings comprising
remaining balance of net income, if any, plus cuativé undistributed earnings shall be distributedhie
following order: (a) from 2% to 5% of distributablearnings shall be distributed to employees as
employee bonus; (b) no more than 0.2% of distritlet@arnings shall be distributed to board of doec
and supervisors as remuneration; and (c) cashetidislto be distributed shall not be less than 50%e0
total amount of dividends to be distributed. I§kealividends to be distributed is less than $0diGspare,
such cash dividend shall be distributed in the fofrmommon shares.

Chunghwa operates in a capital-intensive and tdofggentensive industry and requires capital
expenditures to sustain its competitive positionhigh-growth market. Thus, Chunghwa’s dividend
policy takes into account future capital expenditautlays. In this regard, a portion of the eagaimay

be retained to finance these capital expendituréfe remaining earnings can then be distributed as
dividends if approved by the stockholders in th#ofeing year and will be recorded in the financial
statements of that year.
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For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008adtreal amounts for bonuses to employees and
remuneration to directors and supervisors wereuadcon past experiences and probable amount taitie p
in accordance with Chunghwa’'s Articles of Incorgmma and Implementation Guidance for the
Employee’s Bonus Distribution of Chunghwa Telecom,Ctd.

If the initial accrual amounts of the aforementidrigonus are significantly different from the amaunt
proposed by the board of directors, the differeésceharged to the earnings of the year making rteli
estimate. Otherwise, the difference between Ingiecrual amount and the amount resolved in the
shareholders’ meeting is charged to the earnindbeofollowing year as a result of change in actiogn
estimate.

Under the ROC Company Law, the appropriation fgaleeserve shall be made until the accumulated
reserve equals the aggregate par value of theaodisyy capital stock of Chunghwa. This reserve can
only be used to offset a deficit, or when reaclb0go of the aggregate par value of the outstandapgtadl
stock of Chunghwa, up to 50% of the reserve mayhatoption of Chunghwa, be declared as a stock
dividend and transferred to capital.

The appropriations and distributions of the 2008 2007 earnings of Chunghwa have been approved and
resolved by the stockholders on June 19, 2009 anel 19, 2008 as follows:

Appropriation and Distribution Dividend Per Share

2008 2007 2008 2007
Legal reserve $ 4127675 $ 4,823,356 $- $-
Special reserve 475 - - -
Reversal of special reserve - 3,304 - -
Cash dividends 37,138,775 40,716,130 3.83 4.26
Stock dividends - 955,778 - 0.10
Employee bonus - cash - 1,303,605 - -
Employee bonus - stock - 434,535 - -
Remuneration to board of directors and
supervisors - 43,454 - -

The amounts for bonuses to employees and remunrertdi directors and supervisors approved in the
stockholders’ meeting on June 19, 2009, were $194Z9thousand and $38,807 thousand, respectively.
The bonus to employees was all settled in cashe aforementioned approved amounts of the bonus to
employees and the remuneration to directors andrgigprs were different from the accrual amounts of
$1,723,921 thousand and $40,886 thousand, reselctreflected in the statement of income for tieary
ended December 31, 2008. The differences of $84j@usand and $2,079 thousand, respectively, were
treated as change in estimates and were adjusaéirastgarnings for the year ended December 31,.2009

The stockholders, at a meeting held on June 19,2@8olved to transfer capital surplus in the amai
NT$9,696,808 thousand to common capital stock. dlb@vementioned 2009 capital increase proposal
was effectively approved by FSC. The board ofaies authorized the chairman of directors to decid
the ex-dividend date of the aforementioned propasa the chairman decided the ex-dividend date as
August 9, 2009.

The stockholders, at the stockholders’ meeting baldune 19, 2009, also resolved to reduce the r@inadu
capital in Chunghwa by a cash distribution to it&ckholders in order to improve the financial cdiah of
Chunghwa and better utilize its excess funds. ditmvementioned 2009 capital reduction proposal was
effectively approved by FSC. The board of direstof Chunghwa further authorized the chairman of
board of directors of Chunghwa to designate thercedate of capital reduction as of October 26,9200
Subsequently, common capital stock was reducedT$9M96,808 thousand and the stock transfer date of
capital reduction was January 28, 2010. The amduatto stockholders for capital reduction was [raid
February 2010.
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22.

The stockholders, at a special meeting held on sutd, 2008, resolved to transfer capital surptughe
amount of $19,115,554 thousand to common capitalkst The abovementioned 2008 capital increase
proposal was effectively registered with FSC. PBbard of directors resolved the ex-dividend datthef
aforementioned proposal as October 25, 2008.

The stockholders, at the stockholders’ meeting baldugust 14, 2008, also resolved to reduce thauain

of capital in Chunghwa by a cash distribution sostockholders in order to improve the financialdibon

of Chunghwa and better utilize its excess fundshe Gapital reduction plan was effected by a transfe
capital surplus in the amount of $19,115,554 thndsto common capital stock and was effectively
registered with FSC. Chunghwa designated Dece®te2008 as the record date and March 9, 2009 as
the stock transfer date of capital reduction. $gbently, common capital stock was reduced by
$19,115,554 thousand and a liability for the sammewnt of cash to be distributed to stockholders was
recorded. Such cash payment to stockholders wde maviarch 2009.

The stockholders, at a meeting held on June 15/,2@8olved to transfer capital surplus in the amai
$9,667,845 thousand to common capital stock andtapéal increase proposal was effectively regester
with FSC.

The stockholders, at the stockholders’ meeting baldune 15, 2007, also resolved to reduce the @inadu
capital in Chunghwa by a cash distribution to iteckholders in order to improve the financial cdiudi of
Chunghwa and better utilize its excess funds. ddmatal reduction plan was effected by a transfer o
capital surplus in the amount of $9,667,845 thodsém common capital stock and was effectively
registered with FSC. Chunghwa designated Octo®e007 and December 29, 2007 as the record date
and the stock transfer date of capital reductiespectively. Subsequently, common capital stock wa
reduced by $9,667,845 thousand and a liability tfee actual amount of cash to be distributed to
stockholders of $9,557,777 thousand was record&tle difference between the reduction in common
capital stock and the distribution amount represtneasury stock of $110,068 thousand held by Cinwag
and concurrently cancelled. Such cash paymenbukisolders was made in January 2008.

The appropriation of Chunghwa’s 2009 earnings lmsbren resolved by the board of directors as @f th

report date. Information on the appropriation diu@ghwa’s 2009 earnings, employee bonus and
remuneration to directors and supervisors resolwgdthe board of directors and approved by the
stockholders will be available at the Market Obation Post System website.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

SENAO share-based compensation plans (“SENAO Plalestribed as follows:

Stock Options Units

Effective Date Grant Date (Thousand) Exercise Price
2003.09.03 2003.10.17 3,981 $ 14.7
(Original price $20.2)
2003.09.03 2004.03.04 385 17.6
(Original price $23.9)
2004.12.01 2004.12.28 6,500 10.0
(Original price $11.6
2004.12.01 2005.11.28 1,500 14.4
(Original price $18.3)
2005.09.30 2006.05.05 10,000 13.3
(Original price $16.9)
2007.10.16 2007.10.31 6,181 42.6

(Original price $44.2)

28,547
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Each option is eligible to subscribe for one comrebare when exercisable. Under the terms of thesP|
the options are granted at an exercise price equhé closing price of the SENAQO’s common shaised

on the TSE on the higher of closing price or pdu&a The SENAO Plans have exercise price adjudgtmen
formula upon the issuance of hew common sharedtatiagtion of retained earnings and/or capital
reserves, stock split as well as distribution aftcdividend (except for 2007 Plan), except (i)hie tase of
issuance of new shares in connection with mergaisrathe case of cancellation of outstanding share
connection with capital reduction (2007 Plan is olthis exception), and (ii) except if the exeecjzice
after adjustment exceeds the exercise price befdjtesstment. The options of all the Plans are viid
six years and the graded vesting schedule for whi¥ of option granted will vest two years aftee th
grant date and another two tranches of 25% will treee and four years after the grant date ressdyt

Information about SENAQ’s outstanding stock optiémsthe years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
was as follows:

Stock Options Outstanding

2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average
Options  Exercise Price Options  Exercise Price

(Thousand) NT$ (Thousand) NTS$
Options outstanding, beginning of year 13,818 $26.34 18,592 $24.70
Options exercised (4,076) 13.75 (4,299) 13.64
Options expired (419 31.35 (479 23.10
Options outstanding, end of year 9,323 30.92 13,818 26.34
Options exercisable, end of year 4,545 2,559

As of December 31, 2009, information about SENAQisstanding and exercisable options was as follows:

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted- Weighted Weighted

average Average Average

Range of Exercise  Number of Remaining Exercise Number of Exercise
Price Options Contractual Price Options Price
(NTS) (Thousand)  Life (Years) (NT$) (Thousand) (NT$)
$10.0-$13.3 3,427 2.20 $12.96 1,512 $12.54
$14.4-$17.6 259 1.92 14.40 259 14.40
$42.6 5,637 3.92 42.60 2,774 42.60

As of December 31, 2008, information about SENAQisstanding and exercisable options was as follows:

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted- Weighted Weighted
average Average Average
Range of Exercise  Number of Remaining Exercise Number of Exercise
Price Options Contractual Price Options Price
(NTS) (Thousand)  Life (Years) (NT$) (Thousand) (NT$)
$10.0-$14.3 6,852 3.08 $13.49 1,959 $13.38
$15.5-$18.9 933 2.25 15.60 600 15.65
$42.6 6,033 4.92 42.60 - -
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23.

24.

No compensation cost was recognized under thegitrivalue method for the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008. Had SENAO used the fair value nietbagecognize the compensation cost, there would
have been no significant impact on the consolidattdncome and earnings per share.

Had SENAO used the fair value method to evaluate dptions using the Black-Scholes model, the
assumptions of SENAO for the year ended Decemhe2(B19 would have been as follows:

October 31, May 5, November 28, December 28, March 4,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2004
Expected dividend yield 1.49% - - - -
Risk free interest rate 2.00% 1.75% 2.00% 1.88% 1.88%
Expected life 4.375 years 4.375 years 4.375 years 4.375 years 4.375 years
Expected volatility 39.82% 39.63% 43.40% 49.88% 52.65%
Weighted-average fair value
of grants $13.69 $5.88 $6.93 $4.91 $10.56

TREASURY STOCK (COMMON STOCK IN THOUSANDS OF SHARES)

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008
Balance, beginning of year - 110,068
Decrease - (110,068

Balance, end of year - - - -

According to the Securities and Exchange Law ofRGC, total shares of treasury stock shall not edce
10% of Chunghwa’s stock issued. The total amofitihe repurchased shares shall not be more than the
total amount of retained earnings, capital surgind realized additional paid-in capital. The Compa
shall neither pledge treasury stock nor exercisestolders’ rights on these shares, such as rights
dividends and to vote.

In order to maintain its credit and stockholdeiguigy, Chunghwa repurchased 121,075 thousand sifiare
treasury stock for $7,217,562 thousand from Au@®t2007 to October 25, 2007. On December 29,
2007, Chunghwa cancelled 11,007 thousand sharesea$ury stock by reducing common stock of
$110,068 thousand. The remaining treasury stocK 1df,068 thousand shares amounted $7,107,494
thousand was cancelled on February 21, 2008.

COMPENSATION, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXP ENSES

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Operating Operating
Costs Expenses Total
Compensation expense
Salaries $ 12,543,945 $ 9,900,839 $ 22,444,784
Insurance 998,513 771,386 1,769,899
Pension 1,517,216 1,138,192 2,655,408
Other compensation 8,807,199 6,030,557 14,837,756

$ 23,866,873 $ 17,840,974 $ 41,707,847

Depreciation expense $ 33,169,331 $ 1,944,775 $ 35,114,106
Amortization expense $ 957,183 $ 232,255 $ 1,189,438
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25.

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Operating Operating
Costs Expenses Total
Compensation expense
Salaries $ 12,335,481 $ 9,789,863 $ 22,125,344
Insurance 915,170 703,331 1,618,501
Pension 1,616,950 1,237,295 2,854,245
Other compensation 8,494,259 5,838,074 14,332,333

$ 23,361,860 $ 17,568,563 $ 40,930,423

Depreciation expense $ 35,018,348 $ 2,082,987 $ 37,101,335
Amortization expense $ 889,019 $ 185,862 $ 1,074,881
INCOME TAX

a. Income tax expense consisted of the following:

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008
Income tax payable $ 11,777,375 $ 13,666,740
Income tax - separated 62,768 300,915
Income tax - deferred 1,098,630 (153,646)
Adjustments of prior years’ income tax (195,839 78,299
Income tax $ 12,742934 $ 13,892,308

The balance of income tax payable as of December2@29 and 2008 was shown net of prepaid
income tax.

In May 2009, the Legislative Yuan passed the amemdrof Article 5 of the Income Tax Law, which
reduces the income tax rate of profit-seeking @nisgs from 25% to 20% since 2010. The Company
recalculated its deferred income tax assets ahditi@s in accordance with the amended Article and
recorded the resulting difference as an incomexaense or benefit.
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b. Net deferred income tax assets (liabilities)ststed of the following:

December 31

2009 2008
Current
Deferred income tax assets (liabilities)
Provision for doubtful accounts $ 351,322 $ 489,405
Unrealized accrued expense 50,128 22,384
Estimated warranty liabilities 19,434 12,726
Valuation loss on inventory 16,780 31,181
Abandonment of equipment not approved by Natiomed T
Administration 4,628 40,239
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) 2,870 (35,600)
Loss carryforward 2,274 11,291
Investment tax credit 862 -
Valuation loss (gain) on financial instruments, net (9,015) 13,696
Other 13,371 11,246
452,654 596,568
Valuation allowance (351,307 (478,033
Net deferred income tax assets - current $ 101,347 $ 118,535
Noncurrent
Accrued pension cost $ 333,290 $ 1,404,718
Loss carryforward 112,756 137,280
Impairment loss 63,777 138,499
Investment tax credit 17,016 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 513 2,566
Other 16,008 6,424
543,360 1,689,487
Valuation allowance (60,429 (146,172
Net deferred income tax assets - noncurrent $ 482931 $ 1,543,315

As of December 31, 2009, details for investmentiaxlit of CHI and CHPT are as follows:

Remaining
Creditable
Law/Statue ltems Amount

Statute for Upgrading IndustriesPioneer Industry Investment Tax Credit $ 7,383

Statute for Upgrading Industri¢ Personnel training expenditures $ 690
Personnel training expenditures 3,772

Personnel training expenditures 3,285

Purchase of machinery and equipment 889

Purchase of machinery and equipment 1,580

Purchase of machinery and equipment 279

$ 10,495
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As of December 31, 2009, loss carryforward of CHIBnigate, SHE, LED and CIYP are as follows:

Total Unused Expiry

Company Amounts Amounts Year
CHIEF $ 22,609 $ 22,609 2013
17,942 17,942 2014

20,314 20,314 2015

17,580 17,580 2016

10,068 10,068 2017

3,197 3,197 2018

876 876 2019

Unigate 16 6 2017
7 7 2018

SHE 5,010 3,948 2016
922 922 2017

LED 6,383 6,383 2018
8,904 8,904 2019

CIYpP 2,274 2,274 2019

$ 116,102 $ 115,030
The related information under the Integratedine Tax System is as follows:

December 31

2009 2008
Balance of Imputation Credit Account (“ICA")
Chunghwa $ 7,429,628 $ 7,285,595

The actual and the estimated creditable ratiosiloligion of Chunghwa’s 2009 and 2008 for earnings

were 26.50% and 30.61%, respectively. The impanatredit allocated to stockholders is based on its
balance as of the date of dividend distributionhe Estimated creditable ratio may change when the
actual distribution of imputation credit is made.

Undistributed earnings information

All Chunghwa'’s earnings generated prior to Junel8098 have been appropriated.

Chunghwa’s income tax returns have been examinetiakyauthorities through 2005. SENAOQO’s
income tax returns have been examined by tax ati#sothrough 2006. The following subsidiaries’

income tax returns have been examined by tax atigsothrough 2007: CHIEF, CHSI, SHE, CIYP,
CHI and CHPT. Unigate’s income tax returns havenbexamined by tax authorities through 2008.
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26. EARNINGS PER SHARE

EPS was calculated as follows:

Weighted-
average Earnings Per Share
Amount (Numerator) Number of (Dollars)
Income Common Shares Income
Before (Thousand) Before
Income Tax Net Income (Denominator)  Income Tax Net Income
Year ended December 31, 2009
Basic EPS:
Income attributable to stockholde
of the parent $ 56,163,421 $ 43,757,426 9,696,808 $ 5.79 $ 451
Effect of dilutive potential common
stock
SENAO's stock options (7,707) (7,707) -
Employee bonus - - 28,806
Diluted EPS
Income attributable to stockholde
of the parent (including effect of
dilutive potential common
stock) $ 56,155,714 $ 43,749,719 9,725,614 $ 5.77 $ 450
Year ended December 31, 2008
Basic EPS:
Income attributabléo stockholder
of the parent $ 58,472,865 $ 45,010,342 9,696,808 $ 6.03 $ 464
Effect of dilutive potential common
stock
SENAO's stock options (13,775) (13,775) -
Employee bonus - - 20,681
Diluted EPS
Income attributabléo stockholder
of the parent (including effect of
dilutive potential common
stock) $ 58,459,090 $ 44,996,567 9,717,489 $ 6.02 $ 463

In March 2007, the ARDF issued an Interpretatior098 that requires companies to recognize bonuses
paid to employees, directors and supervisors agx@ense rather than an appropriation of earnings
beginning from January 1, 2008. According to therpretation 97-169 issued by ARDF in May 2008,
Chunghwa presumed that the employees bonusesgaidbavill be settled in shares and takes thoseeshar
into consideration when calculating the weighte@rage number of outstanding shares used in the
calculation of diluted EPS if the shares have atidi¢ effect for the years ended December 31, 2868,
2008. The number of shares is calculated by digidhe amount of bonuses by the closing price ef th
Chunghwa’s shares of the balance sheet date. ilthieel effect of the shares needs to be considertitl

the stockholders resolve the number of shares taligteibuted to employees in their meeting in the
following year.

The diluted earnings per share for the years ebdegmber 31, 2009 and 2008 were also due to theteff
of potential common stock of stock options issug@&BNAO.
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27. PENSION PLAN

Chunghwa completed privatization plans on August2D5. Chunghwa is required to pay all accrued
pension obligations including service clearancenpayt, lump sum payment under civil service plan,
additional separation payments, etc. upon the ostiopl of the privatization in accordance with that&te
Governing Privatization of Stated-owned EnterprisesAfter paying all pension obligations for
privatization, the plan assets of Chunghwa shoud tfansferred to the Fund for Privatization of
Government-owned Enterprises (the “Privatizationd®yunder the Executive Yuan. On August 7, 2006,
Chunghwa transferred the remaining balance of farttle Privatization Fund. However, accordinghte t
instructions of MOTC, Chunghwa is requested to pHyaccrued pension obligations including service
clearance payment, lump sum payment under civiligermplan, additional separation payments, etc. on
behalf of the MOTC upon the completion of the piizeation.

The pension plan under the Labor Pension Act of RBE“LPA”") is effective beginning July 1, 2005dan
this pension mechanism is considered as a defipattilsution plan. Based on the LPA, Chunghwa,
SENAO, CIYP, CHIEF, Unigate, CHSI, SHE, LED, IFEnda CHI make monthly contributions to
employees’ individual pension accounts at 6% of tilgrsalaries and wages.

The Company’s pension plan is considered as aatbfienefit plan under the Labor Standards Law that
provide benefits based on an employee’s lengtlefice and average six-month salary prior to rateet.
Chunghwa, SENAO, CHIEF and SHE contribute an amaonnore than 15% of salaries paid each month
to their respective pension funds (the Funds), Wwhice administered by the Labor Pension Fund
Supervisory Committee (the Committee) and depositethe names of the Committees in the Bank of
Taiwan.

The Company used December 31 as the measuremeribd#teir pension plans.

Pension costs of the Company were $2,948,459 thdu&®2,737,057 thousand subject to defined benefit
plan and $211,402 thousand subject to defined ibomion plan) and $2,938,297 thousand ($2,774,487
thousand subject to defined benefit plan and $1&BtBousand subject to defined contributed planjte
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respgctivel

Pension information of the Company of the definedddit plan is summarized as follows:

a. Components of net periodic pension cost foy &

2009

Chunghwa SENAO CHIEF
Service cost $ 2,693,006 $ 1,602 $ -
Interest cost 184,279 2,757 394
Expected return on plan assets (140,875) (2,595) (254)
Amortization (4,022) 1,224 256
Net periodic benefit pension cost $ 2,732,388 $ 2,988 $ 396
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2008

Chunghwa SENAO CHIEF
Service cost $ 2,658,562 $ 1,610 $ -
Interest cost 185,873 2,656 443
Expected return on plan assets (82,006) (3,154) (227)
Amortization (2,529) 924 111
Curtailment/settlement loss to be recognized 14,374 - (3,082
Net periodic benefit pension cost $ 2,774,274 $ 2,036 2,75

Reconciliation between the fund status and a&ctrpension liabilities, vested benefit, actuarial
assumptions and contributions and payments ofutheé is summarized as follows:

Reconciliation between the fund status and accpeedion cost is summarized as follows:

2009
Chunghwa SENAO CHIEF

Benefit obligation

Vested benefit obligation $ (7,440,999) $ (14,117) $ -

Non-vested benefit obligation (3,156,229 (90,30} (10,00}

Accumulated benefit obligation (10,597,228) (104,418) (10,001)

Additional benefit obligation (1,387,02D (42,34) (6,329

Projected benefit obligation (11,984,248) (146,759) (16,329)
Fair values of plan assets 10,787,564 119,076 9,718
Funded status (1,196,684) (27,683) (6,611)
Amortization of unrecognized net transition

obligation - 1,846 5,250
Unrecognized prior service cost effect (45,754) (7,518) -
Amortization of unrecognized net loss (gain) 34,481 48,561 (3,980

Net amount recognized - prepaid pension cost
- included in other assets - other (accrued

pension liabilities) $ (1,207,95y $ 15,206 $ (5,34)

2008
Chunghwa SENAO CHIEF

Benefit obligation

Vested benefit obligation $ (5,658,116) $ (13,691) $ -

Non-vested benefit obligation (2,832,13% (72,787% (7,662

Accumulated benefit obligation (8,490,251) (86,478) (7,661)

Additional benefit obligation (930,91% (36,350 (6,659

Projected benefit obligation (9,421,166) (122,828) (14,320)
Fair values of plan assets 4,282,694 112,186 8,877
Funded status (5,138,472) (10,642) (5,443)
Amortization of unrecognized net transition

obligation - 2,770 5,712
Unrecognized prior service cost effect (49,776) (7,831) -
Amortization of unrecognized net loss (gain) 23,860 27,614 (5,933

Net amount recognized - prepaid pension cost
- included in other assets - other (accrued
pension liabilities) $ (5,164,388 $ 11911  $ (5,662
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c. Vested benefit

Chunghwa SENAO CHIEF
2009 $ 10,635994 $ 17,846 $ -
2008 $ 7664921 $ 17,776  $ -

d. Actuarial assumptions

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008
Discount rate used in determining present value 2.00% 2.00%
Rate of compensation increase 1.00% 1.00%
Expect long-term rate of return on plan assets 1.50% 2.50%
e. Contributions and payments of the Fund
2009
Chunghwa SENAO CHIEF
Contributions $ 6,645,316 $ 6,129 $ 720
Payments $ 177,500 $ - $ -
2008
Chunghwa SENAO CHIEF
Contributions $ 1,515,234 $ 6,647 $ 735
Payments $ 99,293 $ - $ -

28. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The ROC Government, one of Chunghwa’s customerd Bggnificant equity interest in Chunghwa.
Chunghwa provides fixed-line services, wirelessises, Internet and data and other services todheus
departments and institutions of the ROC Governnasmt other state-owned enterprises in the normal
course of business and at arm’s-length prices. iffegmation on service revenues from government
bodies and related organizations have not beendadbecause details of the type of transactions wet
summarized by Chunghwa. Chunghwa believes thatadts of doing business are reflected in the
financial statements.

a. The Company engages in business transactiohgheitollowing related parties:

Company Relationship

Chunghwa Precision Test Technical Co., Ltd. (“CHPT"Subsidiary of CHI before Chunghwa
obtained control over CHI on September

9, 2009
Taiwan International Standard Electronics Ltd. SEI) Equity-method investee
Skysoft Co., Ltd. (“SKYSOFT") Equity-method investee
So-net Entertainment Taiwan (“So-net”) Equity-method investee
KingWay Technology Co., Ltd. (*KWT") Equity-method investee
Senao Networks, Inc. (“SNI”) Equity-method investee of SENAO

(Continued)
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Company

Relationship

SENAO Technology Education Foundation (“STEF”) A nonprofit organization of which the funds

Institute for Information Industry (“Il1")
e-To You International Inc. ("ETY”)

ELTA Technology Co., Ltd. (“ELTA")

donated by SENAO exceeds one third of
its total funds

Equity- method investor of InfoExplorer

Chairman of ETY is the vice chairman of
InfoExplorer

Equity-method investee before Chunghwa
sold all shares in July 2008

Significant transactions with the above relgiadies are summarized as follows:

1) Receivables

Trade notes and accounts receivable

1]

ETY
CHPT
Others

2) Payables

Trade notes payable, accounts payable, and

accrued expenses
TISE

SKYSOFT

STEF

ETY

Others

Payables to contractors
TISE

3) Advances from customers (include in other

current liabilities)

SNI
Others

-43 -

(Concluded)
December 31
2009 2008
Amount % Amount %

85,106 90 3 - -
9,000 10 - -
- - 1,234 60
217 - 818 40
94,323 100 $ 2,052 100

271,290 81 $ 492883 94
14,218 4 - -
2,802 1 2,385 1
2,754 1 - -
2,346 - 2,032 -
293,410 87 497,300 95
42,309 13 26,188 5
$ 335719 100 $ 523,488 100
2,142 - $ 2688 -

- - 152 -

2,142 - $ 2840 -




Years Ended December 31

2009 2008
Amount % Amount %
4) Revenues
I $ 126,655 - 3% - -
So-net 60,516 - - -
SKYSOFT 34,485 - 32,738 -
ETY 10,812 - - -
ELTA - - 9,831 -
CHPT - - 6,800 -
Others 4,575 - 4,147 -
$ 237,043 - 9% 53,516 _ -
5) Operating costs and expenses
TISE $ 481,743 - $ 538,389 -
SKYSOFT 21,870 - - -
STEF 19,198 - 11,028 -
1] 17,606 - - -
ETY 13,444 - - -
KWT 6,057 - - -
SNI 397 - 8,452 -
ELTA - - 189,744 -
Others 955 - 6,070 -
$ 561,270 - $ 753683 _ -
6) Non-operating income and gains
SNI $ 25,531 2 % 30,731 1
Others 7 - 155 -

$ 25,538 2 3 30,886 1

7) Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

TISE $ 1,336,564 5 $ 849,985 3
1 18,972 - - -
Others - - 355 -

$ 1,355,536 5 $ 850,340 3

SENAO rents out part of its plant to SNI and that ie collected monthly. The foregoing transaction
with related parties were conducted as arm’s letrgihsactions, except for the transactions with SNI
and STEF, Ill and ETY which were determined in adeace with mutual agreements.
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c. The compensation of directors, supervisors aadagements is showed as follow:

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008
Salaries $ 144,192 $ 136,923
Compensation 63,518 56,671
Bonus 60,277 58,239

$ 267,987 $ 251,833

29. PLEDGED ASSETS

The following assets are pledged as collaterasiiart-term and long-term bank loans and contrggobsies
by LED, SENAO, CHIEF, SHE, IFE, CHPT and CHTS.

December 31

2009 2008
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 660,580 $ 337,857
Leased assets, net - 435,166
Restricted assets 100,117 11,904

$ 760,697 $ 784,927

30. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of December 31, 2009, the Company’s remainingroitments under non-cancelable contracts with
various parties were as follows:

a. Acquisition of land and buildings of $229,528ukand.

b. Acquisition of telecommunications equipment ©8®06,427 thousand.

c. Unused letters of credit of $400,000 thousand.

d. Contract to print billing, envelopes and mankgtpifts of $60,111 thousand.

e. LED has already contracted to advance sale maf End buildings for $2,244,173 thousand, and
collected $328,317 thousand according to the cotstra

f. For the purpose of completion the constructiaoguisition of the building construction licensedan
registration ownerships of all buildings for Wan-Rioject, LED signed the trust deeds with Hua Nan
Bank and China Real Estate Management Co., LtdtHerfund management, property rights and
related development to the extent of authority theygiven.
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Trust assets are as follow:

December 31,
2009

Restricted assets -bank deposits $ 100,869
Land held under development 1,822,167

$ 1,923,036

The Company also has non-cancelable operat@isg$ecovering certain buildings, computers, compute
peripheral equipment and operation system softwar@er contracts that expire in various years.
Future lease payments were as follows:

Amount
2010 $ 1,731,510
2011 1,381,134
2012 1,053,008
2013 815,230
2014 and thereafter 452 514

. A commitment to contribute $2,000,000 thousaméh tPiping Fund administered by the Taipei City

Government, of which $1,000,000 thousand was dauted by Chunghwa on August 15, 1996
(classified as long-term investment - other monetasets). If the fund is not sufficient, Chunghwa
will contribute the remaining $1,000,000 thousapdrunotification from the Taipei City Government.
Based on Chunghwa’s understanding of the PipingdRermms, if the project is considered to be no
longer necessary by the ROC government, ChunghWlaegeive back its proportionate share of the
net equity of the Piping Fund upon its dissolutiohe Company does not know when its contribution
to the Piping Fund will be returned; therefore, ®@mpany did not discount the face amount of its
contribution to the Pining Fund.

A portion of the land used by Chunghwa during theriod July 1, 1996 to December 31, 2004 was
co-owned by Chunghwa and Taiwan Post Co., Ltd. {oheer Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd. directorate
General of Postal Service). In accordance withdhaéens process in Taiwan, on July 12, 2005, the
Taiwan Taipei District Court sent a claim noticeQbunghwa to reimburse Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd. in
the amount of $767,852 thousand for land usage eonsgtion due to the portion of land usage area in
excess of Chunghwa’s ownership and along with @stecalculated at 5% interest rate from June 30,
2005 to the payment date. Chunghwa stated thét jmtties have the right to use co-management
land without consideration. Chunghwa Post Co., tt&h't request payment for land compensation.
Furthermore, Chunghwa believes that the computaised to derive the land usage compensation
amount is inaccurate because most of the compensatnount has expired as result of the expiration
clause. Therefore, Chunghwa filed an appeal atTdievan Taipei District Court. On March 30,
2009, the Taiwan Taipei District Court renderedutigment that Chunghwa only need to pay $16,870
thousand along with interest calculated at 5% paum from July 23, 2005 and 4% of the court fees as
the court judgment compensation. However, ChungRast Co., Ltd. did not accept the judgment
and filed an appeal at Taiwan High Court. Chunghlga filed an appeal at the Taiwan High Court
within the statutory period. As of the date of thalit report, the appeal is still in process.

Giga Media filed a civil action against Chunghwah the Taiwan Taipei District Court (the “Couprt”
on June 12, 2008. The complaint alleged that Chwaginfringed Giga Media’s ROC Patent
No. 1258284 which is a Point-to-Point Protocol ofathernet (“PPPoE") technique used to launch fixed
IP of ADSL. Giga Media is seeking damages of $800,thousand and interest calculated at 5% for
the period from one day following the date Chunghme@eived the official notification from the Court
to the payment date. Afterwards Giga Media withdtieis civil action on October 2, 2009.
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31. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Carrying amounts and fair values of financiatinaments were as follows:

December 31

2009 2008
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 73,259,490 $ 73,259,490 $ 81,288,165 $ 81,288,165
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 40,519 40,519 258,578 258,578
Available-for-sale financial assets 17,537,089 17,537,089 14,182,385 14,182,385
Held-to-maturity financial assets -

current 1,099,595 1,099,595 769,435 769,435
Trade notes and accounts receivable,

net 11,973,180 11,973,180 10,844,712 10,844,712
Receivables from related parties 94,323 94,323 2,052 2,052
Other current monetary assets 1,839,745 1,839,745 2,226,256 2,226,256
Restricted assets - current 177,462 177,462 58,914 58,914
Investments accounted for using equ

method 1,621,772 1,742,624 2,337,190 2,498,632
Financial assets carried at cost 2,536,560 2,536,560 2,537,357 2,537,357
Held-to-maturity financial assets -

noncurrent 3,929,662 3,929,662 3,044,102 3,044,102
Other noncurrent monetary assets 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Refundable deposits 1,550,825 1,550,825 1,373,644 1,373,644
Restricted assets - noncurrent (included

in “other assets - others”) 23,524 23,524 8,536 8,536

Liabilities

Short-term loans 763,000 763,000 258,000 258,000
Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss 828 828 107,344 107,344
Trade notes and accounts payable 10,155,383 10,155,383 11,359,570 11,359,570
Payables to related parties 335,719 335,719 523,488 523,488
Accrued expenses 17,448,914 17,448,914 16,345,702 16,345,702
Due to stockholders for capital

reduction 9,696,808 9,696,808 19,115,554 19,115,554
Payables to contractors (included in

“other current liabilities”) 2,229,165 2,229,165 1,546,234 1,546,234

Amounts collected in trust for others

(included in “other current

liabilities”) 2,224,736 2,224,736 $ 2,534,600 $ 2,534,600
Payables to equipment suppliers

(included in “other current

liabilities”) 1,532,703 1,532,703 2,526,229 2,526,229
Refundable customers’ deposits

(included in “other current

liabilities”) 1,045,127 1,045,127 980,622 980,622
Hedging derivative financial liabilities

(included in “other current

liabilities”) - - 27,616 27,616
Current portion of long-term loans 117,181 117,181 8,440 8,440
Long-term loans 221,252 221,252 29,400 29,400
Customers’ deposits 5,998,035 5,998,035 6,159,722 6,159,722

b. Methods and assumptions used in the estimafitairosalues of financial instruments:

1) The fair values of certain financial instrumergsognized in the balance sheet generally correspo
to the market prices of the financial assets. Bseaf the short maturities of these instruments,
the carrying value represents a reasonable basistimate fair values. This method does not
apply to the financial instruments discussed ined¥d, 3, and 4 below.
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2) If the financial instruments have quoted magk#tes in an active market, the quoted market price
are viewed as fair values. If the market priceghaf other financial instruments are not readily
available, valuation techniques are used incorpayastimates and assumptions that are consistent
with prevailing market conditions.

3) Long-term investments are based on the net assgts or carrying values of the investments in
unconsolidated companies if quoted market pricesat available.

4) The fair value of long-term loans (including @t portion) is discounted based on discounted
projected cash flow which approximate their camgymmounts. The projected cash flows were
discounted using the interest rate of similar leerga loans.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilitising quoted market price or valuation techniquessvas
follows:

Amount Based on Quoted Market ~ Amount Determined Using Valuation

Price Techniques
December 31 December 31
2009 2008 2009 2008

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss $ 40,519 $ 258,578 $ - $ -
Available-for-sale financial assets 17,537,089 14,182,385 - -
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss 828 107,344 - -
Hedging derivative financial liabilities

(classified as other current liabilities) - 27,616 - -

Information about financial risks
1) Market risk

The foreign exchange rate fluctuations would resuthe Company’s foreign-currency-dominated
assets and liabilities, outstanding currency swagiracts, forward exchange contracts and currency
option contracts exposed to rate risk.

The fluctuations of market price would result i thdex future contracts exposed to price risk.

The financial instruments categorized as availfdresale financial assets are mainly listed stocks
and open-end mutual funds. Therefore, the maitkktis the fluctuations of market price. In
order to manage this risk, the Company would asHessrisk before investing; therefore, no
material market risk are anticipated.

2) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that wobke incurred by the Company if the

counter-parties or third-parties breached contradi&nancial instruments with positive fair values
at the balance sheet date are evaluated for aisklit The counter-parties or third-parties of the
aforementioned financial instruments are reputafit@ncial institutions and corporations.

Management does not expect the Company’s exposulefault by those parties to be material.
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e.

3) Liquidation risk

The Company has sufficient operating capital to tneash needs upon settlement of derivative
financial instruments. Therefore, the liquidatitsk is low.

The financial instruments of the Company categdrias available-for-sale financial assets are
publicly-traded, easily converted to cash. Thaefmo material liquidation risk are anticipated.
The financial instruments categorized as finanagsets carried at cost are investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market. er@fore, material liquidation risk are
anticipated.

4) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Company engages in investments in fixed-inteede debt securities. Therefore, cash flows
from such securities are not expected to fluctsadaificantly due to changes in market interest
rates.

In addition, Chunghwa engages in investments imtifhg-interest-rate debt securities. The
changes in market interest rate would impact tbatithg-interest rate; therefore, cash flows from
such securities are expected to fluctuate duedagds in market interest rates.

Fair value hedge

Chunghwa entered into currency swap contracts am&iafd exchange contracts to hedge the
fluctuation in exchange rates of beneficiary cexdiie denominated in foreign currency, which is fai
value hedge. The transaction was assessed ay bifgdtive for the years ended December 31, 2009
and 2008.

None of the hedge currency swap contracts and fdreschange contracts existed as of December 31,
20009.

Outstanding forward exchange contracts for hedgd Becember 31, 2008:

Contract Amount
Currency Holding Period (In Thousands)
December 31, 2008

Forward exchange contracts - sell USD/NTD 2009.01 USD30,000

As of December 31, 2008, the forward exchange aonhtneasured at fair value resulting in hedging
derivative financial liability of $27,616 thousafuassified as other current liabilities).

32. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Following are the additional disclosures requirgdie SFC for Chunghwa and its investees:

a.

b.

Financing provided: Please see Table 1.
Endorsement/guarantee provided: None.
Marketable securities held: Please see Table 2.

Marketable securities acquired and disposed obsts or prices at least $100 million or 20% ha# t
paid-in capital: Please see Table 3.
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Acquisition of individual real estate at cosfsab least $100 million or 20% of the paid-in capit
Please see Table 4.

Disposal of individual real estate at pricegbfeast $100 million or 20% of the paid-in capitaNone.

Total purchase from or sale to related partreeumting to at least $100 million or 20% of thedpan
capital: Please see Table 5.

Receivables from related parties amounting @0&housand or 20% of the paid-in capital:
Table 6.

Names, locations, and other information of irieges on which the Company exercises significant
influence: Please see Table 7.

Financial transactions: Please see Notes 38and
Investment in Mainland China: Please see Téble

Intercompany relationships and significant intenpany transaction: Please see Table 9.

33. THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF OPERATING SEGMENTS

a. Segment information: Please see Table 10.

b. Products and service revenues from external custifoemation: Please see Table 11.

C.

Geographic information

The users of the Company'’s services are mainly ffamwan, ROC. The revenues it derived outside
Taiwan are mainly revenues from international loingjance telephone and leased line services. The
geographic information for revenues is as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2009 2008
(In Thousands) (In Thousands)

Taiwan, ROC $ 193,003,567 $ 196,333,878
Overseas 5,357,653 5,335,643

$ 198,361,220 $ 201,669,521
The Company has long-lived assets in U.S., Singapgdong Kong, China, Vietnam, Thailand, and
Japan and except for $175,095 thousand and $31f#i&and at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, in the aforementioned areas, ther dtimg-lived assets are located in Taiwan, ROC.

Major customers’ information

The export sales revenue of the Company is less10% of the operating income.

-850 -



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

FINANCINGS PROVIDED
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified Otherwise

TABLE 1

Collateral

Financing

L Financing
. : , Limit for ;
Financial Maximum . Type of : Reason for Company’s
. . Ending Interest Rate . . Transaction Allowance for Each X .
No. | Financing Company| Counter-party Statement | Balance for Financing Short-term . Financing
Balance (Note 5) Amount . : Bad Debt Item Value Borrowing e
Account the Year (Note 2) Financing Amount Limit
Company (Note 4)
(Note 3)
9 |Chunghwa Telecom |ST-2 Satellite  |Other $ 546,167 $ 546,167 6.38% a (Note 6) - $ - $ $ 1,407,519 $ 1,407,519
Singapore Pte., Ltd, Ventures Pte.,| receivables| (SG$ 23,913) (SG$ 23,913) (SG$ 61,625) (SG$ 61,625)
Ltd.

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Significant transactions between the Company and its sulesidiadmong subsidiaries are numbered as follows:

a. “0” for the Company.
b. Subsidiaries are numbered from “1”.

Reasons for financing are as follows:

a. Business relationship.
b. For short-term financing.

The upper limit of loans lending to any other party is no more than 10@%rwdt value of the latest financial statements of the lender.

The upper limit of loans lending to all other parties is no more than a0 net value of the latest financial statements of the lender.

It equals to the prime rate of Singapore plus 1%.

Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Pte., Ltd. signed the joint gegdntract with SingTelSat Pte., Ltd. to establish ST-2lIBatéentures Pte., Ltd. which mainly engages in the Iladtan and the operation of ST-2 telecommunications
In the contract, it stated that Chunghwa Telecom Singaoy&tat is obligated to rent the ST-2 telecommunications satebite 8T-2 Satellite Ventures Pte., Ltd. when the satellite is accdreglis

satellite.
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD
DECEMBER 31, 2009
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Sgfed)

TABLE 2

December 31, 2009
No. | Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relationship with the Financial Statement Account Shares Carrying Value | Percentage of Market Value or Note
Company (Thousands/ .
' (Note 6) Ownership | Net Asset Value
Thousand Units)
0 |[Chunghwa Telecom Co., |__Stocks

Ltd. Senao International Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments acabfortasing equity methqd 71,773 $ 1,331,859 29 $ 3,452,289 | Note 5
(Note 12)

Light Era Development Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accouotersing equity methad 300,000 2,926,677 100 2,927,108 | Note 1
(Note 12)

Chunghwa Investment Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accountesirfigrequity method 178,000 1,651,391 89 1,723,733 | Note 1
(Note 12)

Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Pte. Ltd. Subsidiary Investments aaddomtising equity method 61,869 1,407,519 100 1,407,519 | Note 1
(Note 12)

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments aeddontusing equity method 60,000 706,932 100 625,409 | Note 1
(Note 12)

CHIEF Telecom Inc. Subsidiary Investments accounted for @sjaigy method 37,942 447,647 69 396,688 | Note 1
(Note 12)

Taiwan International Standard Electronics Co.,Equity-method investee Investments accounted for using equity method 1,760 427,810 40 635,946 | Note 1

Ltd.

InfoExplorer Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for usingyegaihod 22,498 276,472 49 227,865 | Note 1
(Note 12)

Viettel-CHT Co., Ltd. Equity-method investeg Investments accddoteusing equity methqd - 269,924 30 269,924 | Note 1

Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted foregpinty method 51,590 230,528 100 230,528 | Note 1
(Note 12)

Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Invessnaenbunted for using equity method 15,000 171,986 100 171,986 | Note 1
(Note 12)

Skysoft Co., Ltd. Equity-method investee Investments accountedifigrecpuity method 4,438 89,913 30 50,546 | Note 1

KingWay Technology Co., Ltd. Equity-method investée Investmentaiated for using equity methpd 1,703 69,913 33 18,917 | Note 1

Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. Subsidiary Investments accountedrfgraggiity method 6,000 63,752 100 83,537 | Note 1
(Note 12)

Spring House Entertainment Inc. Subsidiary Investments accowntesirig equity methad 5,996 57,095 56 41,806 | Note 1
(Note 12)

So-net Entertainment Taiwan Equity-method investee Investmecdsinted for using equity method 3,429 30,920 30 13,066 | Note 1

Chunghwa Telecom Japan Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accoomtesthfy equity methad 1 10,166 100 10,166 | Note 1
(Note 12)

(Continued)
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December 31, 2009
No. | Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relatlgnshlp with the Financial Statement Account Shares Carrying Value | Percentage of Market Value or Note
ompany (Thousands/ .
Thousand Units) (Note 6) Ownership | Net Asset Value
New Prospect Investments Holdings Ltd. (B.V|Bubsidiary Investments accounted for using equity method - (US$ 1 dollar) 100 (US$ 1 dollar)|Note 3
(Note 12)
Prime Asia Investments Group Ltd. (B.V.l.) Subsidiary Investsraccounted for using equity method - (US$ 1 dollar) 100 (US$ 1 dollar)|Note 3
(Note 12)
Taipei Financial Center - Financial assets carried at cost 172,927 1,789,530 12 1,358,652 Note 2
Industrial Bank of Taiwan Il Venture Capital Co., Financial assets carried at cost 20,000 200,000 17 223,065 Note 2
Ltd. (IBT 11)
Global Mobile Corp. Financial assets carried at cost 12,696 127,018 11 109,111) Note 2
iD Branding Ventures Financial assets carried at cost 7,500 75,000 81,292 Notel 2
PRTI International Financial assets carried at cost 4,765 34,500 10 35/515 Note 2
Essence Technology Solution, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 2,000 - 9 2,882| Note 2
Beneficiary certificates (mutual fund)
PCA Well Pool Fund Available-for-sale financial assets 194,181 2,500,000 2,521,128 4N
Yuan Ta Wan Tai Bond Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 173,683 2,500,000 - 2,513,121 Note 4
Central Diamond Bond Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 126,106 1,500,000 - 1,504,586 Note 4
Polaris De-Li Available-for-sale financial assets 129,654 2,008,787 2,021,96M0e 4N
Fuh-Hwa Bond Fund Available-for-sale financial assets 108,849 1,500,000 1,503,)70te 4N
JPM (Taiwan) Global Balanced Fund - Available-for-sale firglrassets 14,161 200,000 - 207,434 Note 4
JPM (Taiwan) JF Balanced Fund - Available-for-sale firglrassets 2,462 50,000 - 49,538 Note 4
Fuh-Hwa Aegis Fund Available-for-sale financial assets 17,813 234,684 - 234,436te 4
AGI Global Quantitative Balanced Fund - Available-for-sataficial assets 17,000 197,821 - 196,180 Note 4
Capital Value Balance Fund - Available-for-sale financiatts 8,000 141,776 - 139,231 Note 4
Fuh Hwa Life Goal Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 9,330 140,000 - 159,579 Note 4
Fuh Hwa Asia Pacific Balanced - Available-for-sale finanassets 7,764 100,000 - 89,907 Note 4
Asia-Pacific Mega - Trend Fund - Available-for-sale finahassets 15,074 200,000 - 193,694 Note 4
PCA Asia Pacc Infrastructure Fund - Available-for-salerfoia assets 3,061 30,000 - 30,850 Note 4
AIG Flagship Global Balanced Fund of Funds - Available-for-salefiahassets 25,679 350,000 - 348,723 Note 4
Franklin Templeton Global Bond Fund of Funds - Available-for-sale finhassets 14,000 158,018 - 175,307 Note 4
Cathay Global Aggressive Fund of Funds - Available-for-saleadinhassets 15,570 210,000 - 198,047 Note 4
Polaris Global Emerging Market Funds - Available-for-salenfiie assets 13,603 200,000 - 191,389 Note 4
HSBC Global Fund of Bond Funds - Available-for-sale financial assets 22,838 250,000 - 259,143 Note 4
Fuh Hwa global Fixed Income FOFs Fund - Available-for-sale finanssaita 11,512 140,00 - 141,257 Note 4
PCA Asia Pacific REITs-A - Available-for-sale financadsets 7,849 50,00( - 51,020 Note 4
Fidelity US High Yield Fund - Available-for-sale financial etss 535 206,588 - 187,894 Note 4
HSBC GIF G16 Emg MK+ Bond - Available-for-sale financial assets 273 155,112 - 153,752 Note 4
FTIF - Templeton G16 Bond - Available-for-sale financial assets 289 210,001 - 208,570 Note 4
PIMCO Global Investment Grade Credi - Ins H Available-for-sale financial assets 398 161,575 - 160,668te N
Acc
MFS Meridian Funds - Global Equity Fund (Al Available-for-sale financial assets 2538 262,293 - 222,376te N
class)
Fidelity Fds International - Available-for-sale financialeiss 128 163,960 - 123,157 Note 4
Fidelity Fds America Available-for-sale financial assets 93y 163,960 - 134,258te N
JPMorgan Funds - Global Dynamic Fund (B) - Available-for-sale finhassets 303 165,64( - 126,684 Note 3
MFS Meridian Funds - Research International Available-for-sale financial assets 178 131,920 - 100,556te 4
Fund (Al share)
Fidelity Fds Emerging Markets - Available-for-sale finahagsets 144 122,175 - 84,397 Note4
(Continued)
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December 31, 2009
No. | Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relatlgnshlp with the Financial Statement Account Shares Carrying Value | Percentage of Market Value or Note
ompany (Thousands/ .
, (Note 6) Ownership | Net Asset Value
Thousand Units)
Credit Suisse Equity Fund (Lux) Global - Available-for-sale financial assets 10 $ 130,402 - $ 88,78b6te N
Resources
Schroder ISF - BRIC Fund - A1 Acc - Available-for-sale finahassets 31 197,071 - 195,344 Note 4
Parvest Europe Convertible Bond Fond - Available-for-sale finaassats 71 398,781 - 390,303 Note 4
JPMorgan Funds - Global Convertibles Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 868 491,450 - 481,08dte N
(EUR)
Schroder ISF Euro Corp. Bond A - Available-for-sale financial assets 260 190,098 - 185,120 Note 4
Fidelity Euro Balanced Fund - Available-for-sale financial t&sse 476 303,683 - 259,501 Note 4
Fidelity Fds World - Available-for-sale financial assets 248 144,116 - 102,526te N
Fidelity Fds Euro Blue Chip - Available-for-sale financial &sse 155 140,125 - 98,465 Note 4
MFS Meridian FundsEuropean Equity Fund (A - Available-for-sale financial assets 171 178,920 - 137,276te N
share)
Henderson Horizon Fund - Pan European Equlity - Available-for-sale financial assets 230 180,886 - 154,008te N
Fund
Stock
Polaris TW Top 50 Tracker - Available-for-sale financiaets 1,710 91,574 - 96,530 Note 5
Polaris/P-Shares Taiwan DTV ETF - Available-for-salerfial assets 600 15,000 - 14,040 Note5
China Steel Corporation - Available-for-sale financial assets 926 28,374 - 30,558 Note 5
Siliconware Precision Industries Co., Ltd. - Available-for-salarfaial assets 661 28,369 - 28,654 Note 5
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. - Available-for-dakmtial assets 456 28,357 - 29,412 Note 5
U-Ming Marine Transport Corp. - Available-for-sale financiabets 454 28,363 - 29,510 Note 5
President Chain Store Corp. - Available-for-sale financiatass 375 28,367 - 28,538 Note 5
REITS
Gallop No. 1 REIT - Available-for-sale financial assets 4,643 46,480 - 37,980te B
Fubon No. 1 Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 5,72 57,270 - 64,14pte B
Bonds
Mega Securities Corp. 1st Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets 150,000 - 150,000 e Not
Bonds in 2007
KGI Securities 1st Unsecured Corporate Bonds - Held-to-maturity financial assets 100,000 - 100,000 e Mot
2007 - B Issue
Mega Financial Holding 1st Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets 200,000 - 200,000 e Mot
Bond 2007 - B Issue
Mega Securities Corp. 1st Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets 300,000 - 300,000 e Mot
Bond 2008 - A Issue
Formosa Petrochemical Corp. - Held-to-maturity financiatass - 99,876 - 99,876 Note 7
Taiwan Power Company 3rd Boards in 2008 - Held-to-maturity financatsas - 149,941 - 149,941 Note 7
GreTai Company 1st Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets 100,000 - 100,000 e Mot
Bonds-A Issue in 2008
Fubon Financial Holding Company 2005 1st - Held-to-maturity financial assets 99,720 - 99,720 eMot
Unsecured Debenture
Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 3rd - Held-to-maturity financial assets 49,935 - 49,985 eNot
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2008.
Taiwan Power Company 5th Boards in 2008 - Held-to-maturity finaasssts - 272,397 - 272,397 Note 7
(Continued)

-54 -



December 31, 2009
No. | Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relatlgnshlp with the Financial Statement Account Shares Carrying Value | Percentage of Market Value or Note
ompany (Thousands/ .
Thousand Units) (Note 6) Ownership | Net Asset Value

Yuanta Securities Finance Co. Ltd. 1st Unsecured - Held-to-maturity financial assets $ 100,015 - $ 100,01l®te W
Corporate Bonds-A Issue in 2007

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 4th - Held-to-maturity financial assets 300,716 - 300,716 e Mot
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2006

NAN YA Company 2nd Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets 407,575 - 407,575 e Not
Bonds Issue in 2008

Taiwan Power Company 3rd Boards in 2006 - Held-to-maturity finarssats - 201,019 - 201,019 Note 7

Taiwan Power Co. 1st Unsecured Bond-B Issue in - Held-to-maturity financial assets 180,039 - 180,039 e Mot
2001

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation Bond Issl - Held-to-maturity financial assets 201,358 - 201,358 e Mot
2006

NAN YA Company 3rd Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets 204,583 - 204,58te M
Bonds Issue in 2008

China Development Financial Holding - Held-to-maturity financial assets 202,049 - 202,049 e Not
Corporation 1st Unsecured Corporate Bonds
Issue in 2006

China Development Financial Holding - Held-to-maturity financial assets 103,656 - 103,656 e Mot
Corporation 1st Unsecured Corporate Bonds -
A Issue in 2008

Taiwan Power Co. 4th secured Bond-B Issue in - Held-to-maturity financial assets 51,948 - 51,948 eNot
2008

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 2nd - Held-to-maturity financial assets 102,961 - 102,961 e Mot
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2008

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 1st - Held-to-maturity financial assets 201,190 - 201,190 e Not
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2009

NAN YA Company 1st Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets 99,893 - 99,893 eNot
Bonds Issue in 2009

MLPC 1st Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue |n - Held-to-maturity financial assets 199,703 - 199,703 e Mot
2009

China Steel Corporation 2nd Unsecured Corp( - Held-to-maturity financial assets 100,033 - 100,033 e Mot
Bonds - A Issue in 2008

China Development Financial Holding - Held-to-maturity financial assets 202,049 - 202,049 e Not
Corporation 1st Unsecured Corporate Bonds
Issue in 2006

Taiwan Power Co. 2nd Unsecured Bond - CB - Held-to-maturity financial assets 151,043 - 151,043 e Not
Issue in 2003

Chinatrust Commercial Bank 2nd Unsecured - Held-to-maturity financial assets 198,410 - 198,4Nbte 7
Subordinate Financial Debentures Issue in 2003

China Development Industrial Bank 2nd Finangial - Held-to-maturity financial assets 198,741 - 198, 7iNote 7
Debentures Issue in 2006

TaipeiFubon Bank 1st Financial Debentures - BA - Held-to-maturity financial assets 100,4Q7 - 100,407 e Mot
Issue in 2005

(Continued)
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December 31, 2009
No. | Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relationship with the Financial Statement Account Shares Carrying Value | Percentage of Market Value or Note
Company (Thousands/ .
, (Note 6) Ownership | Net Asset Value
Thousand Units)
1 |Senao International Co., Stocks
Ltd. Senao Networks, Inc. Equity-method investee Investments aeddonusing equity method 15,295 $ 288,407 41 $ 288,40f Notel
Senao International (Samoa) Holding Ltd. Subsidiary Investmerasiated for using equity method - - 100 - | Note 8
(Note 12)
N.T.U. Innovation Incubation Corporation - Financial assets carried at cost 1,200 12,000 9 12,672 Note 2
Beneficiary certificates (mutual fund)
Prudential Financial Bond Fund - Available-for-sale finahassets 3,304 50,000 - 50,005 Note 4
IBT Bond Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 3,69 50,000 - 50,008te N
Fuh Hwa Global Short-term Income Fund - Available-for-salenfifed assets 4,850 50,000 - 50,379 Note 4
Fuh Hwa Strategic High Income Fund - Available-for-sale findiasisets 5,000 50,00 - 51,100 Note 4
2 |CHIEF Telecom Inc. Stocks
Unigate Telecom Inc. Subsidiary Investments accounted ifug eguity method 200 1,997 100 1,997 | Note 1
(Note 12)
CHIEF Telecom (Hong Kong) Limited Subsidiary Investments aceoluiotr using equity method 400 993 100 993 | Note 1
(Note 12)
Chief International Corp. Subsidiary Investments accountaasfog equity method 200 7,601 100 7,601 | Note 1
(Note 12)
eASPNet Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 1,000 - 2 - Note 2
3 Link Information Service Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried &at cos 374 3,450 10 6,633 Note 2
3 |Chunghwa System Stocks
Integration Co., Ltd. Concord Technology Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Invessnaecounted for using equity method 500 474 100 474 | Note 1
(Note 12)
Beneficiary certificates (mutual fund)
Cathay Global Aggressive Fund of Fund - Available-for-salenfiizh assets 1,233 15,000 - 15,690 Note 4
Cathay Global Infrastructure Fund - Available-for-sale fir@rassets 1,418 15,00( - 12,099 Note 4
9 |Chunghwa Telecom Stocks
Singapore Pte., Ltd.  |ST-2 Satellite Ventures Pte., Ltd. Equity-method investegInvestments accounted for using equity method 18,102 408,341 38 408,341 |Note 1
(SG$ 17,878) (SG$ 17,878)
18 |Concord Technology Co.,|Stocks
Ltd. Glory Network System Service (Shanghai) Co{Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity method 500 469 100 469 |Note 1
Ltd. (Note 12)
14 |Chunghwa Investment Stocks
Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. Subsidiary meess accounted for using equity method 10,317 109,560 54 109,560 | Note 1
(Note 12)
Chunghwa Investment Holding Company Subsidiary Investments accdontesing equity methad 589 10,860 100 10,860 | Note 1
(Note 12)
Tatung Technology Inc. Equity-method investee Investments accdonigsing equity methad 5,000 36,544 28 36,544 Note 1
PandaMonium Company Ltd. Equity-method investee Investments accoomtsihy equity methad 602 - 43 - | Note 1
CHIEF Telecom Inc. Equity-method investee Investments accoforteding equity methad 2,000 20,558 4 20,933 | Note 1
(Note 12)
(Continued)
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December 31, 2009
y Relationship with the - Shares .
No. | Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name C Financial Statement Account (Thousands/ | Carrying Value |Percentage of Market Value or Note
ompany .
Thousand (Note 6) Ownership | Net Asset Value
Units)
Digimax Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 2,000% 36,000 4 $ 15,860, Note 2
ChipSiP Technology Co. - Financial assets carried at cost 923 25,508 3 21,093| Note 11
iD Branding Ventures - Financial assets carried at cost 2,500 25,000 3 27,100 Note 2
Crystal Media Inc. Co. - Financial assets carried at cost 1,000 15,000 5 6,380| Note 2
Giga Solar Materials Corporation - Financial assets cbatieost 454 54,720 2 216,481 Note 11
UniDisplay Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 4,000 46,000 3 46,000| Note 2
Superior Industries Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cost 750 22,500 2 14,880| Note 2
XinTec Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 24 1,076 - 1,280 | Note 2
LightHouse Technology Co. - Financial assets carried at cost 219 10,650 - 11,802| Note 11
J Touch Corporation. - Financial assets carried at cost 74 3,640 - 4,241 | Note 11
DelSolar Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cost 113 5,376 - 5,885 | Note 11
Taidoc Technology Corporation - Financial assets carried at cost 26 3,468 - 3,348 | Note 11
Tennrich International Corp. - Financial assets carried at cost 163 3,112 - 3,982 | Note 11
Subtron Technology Co. - Financial assets carried at cost 271 3,384 - 3,667 | Note 11
Huga Optotech Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 229 6,672 - 8,116 | Note 11
Tatung Fine Chemicals Co. - Financial assets carried at cost 93 7,762 - 5,863 | Note 11
Join Well Technology Co. - Financial assets carried at cost 206 8,210 - 10,368 | Note 11
Daxon Technology Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 50 750 - 1,278 | Note 11
Win Semiconductors Corp. - Financial assets carried at cost 260 7,603 - 7,145 | Note 11
GoaTronics Inc. Prepayments for long-term investments in stpcks - 25,000 - 25,000 -
Huga Optotech Inc. Prepayments for long-term investments in stpcks - 791 - 791 -
Tennrich International Corp. Prepayments for long-term invese stocks - 7 - 7 -
China Steel Corporation - Available-for-sale financial assets 263 7,757 - 8,271 | Note 5
Chi Mei Optoelectronics Corporation - Available-for-sale finahnassets 2( 332 - 450 | Note 5
Lite-On Technology Corp. - Available-for-sale financial assets 10 247 - 483 | Note 5
Asustek Computer Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 10 395 - 619 | Note 5
Orise Technology Co. - Available-for-sale financial assets 15 604 - 1,193 | Note 5
AU Optronics Corp. - Available-for-sale financial assets 6 181 - 223 | Note 5
Hon Hai Precision Ind. Co. - Available-for-sale financial assets 3 324 - 455 | Note 5
Tung Ho Steel Enterprise Corp. - Available-for-sale financidtas 30 1,009 - 1,040 | Note 5
Asia Cement Corporation - Available-for-sale financial assets 40 1,476 - 1,384 | Note 5
Yuanta Financial Holdings - Available-for-sale financial asset 70 1,707 - 1,645 | Note 5
Soft-World International Corporation - Available-for-sale finahassets 5 898 - 1,018 | Note 5
Radium Life Tech. Co., Ltd. - Available-for-sale financial asset 20 549 - 538 | Note 5
China Synthetic Rubber Corporation - Available-for-sale finarssaéts 2( 686 - 684 | Note 5
Cyberlink Co. - Available-for-sale financial assets 5 676 - 685 | Note 5
Formosa Plastics Corporation - Available-for-sale financis¢ts 86 4,961 - 5,768 | Note 5
Fubon Financial Holding Co. - Available-for-sale financial assets 200 7,447 - 7,860 | Note 5
Cathay Financial Holding Co. - Available-for-sale financiakets 151 8,669 - 8,985 | Note 5
Asustek Computer Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 100 5,708 - 6,180 | Note 5
LARGAN Precision Co. - Available-for-sale financial assets 10 3,870 - 4,294 | Note 5
Dynapack International Technology Corp. - Available-for-salerfonal assets 36 3,261 - 4,034 | Note 5
Anpec Electronics Corporation - Available-for-sale financéaledis 51 1,745 - 2,746 | Note 5
Wei Chuan Foods Corp. - Available-for-sale financial assets 198 8,710 - 8,633 | Note 5
Faraday Technology Corp. - Available-for-sale financial assets 5 281 - 356 | Note 5
Gemtek Technology Co. - Available-for-sale financial assets 50 2,907 - 2,890 | Note 5
Swancor. Ind. Co. - Available-for-sale financial assets 129 7,376 - 9,265 | Note 5
(Continued)
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December 31, 2009
No. | Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relatlgnshlp with the Financial Statement Account Shares Carrying Value | Percentage of Market Value or Note
ompany (Thousands/ .
, (Note 6) Ownership | Net Asset Value
Thousand Units)
Apex Biotechnology Corp. - Available-for-sale financial assets 121 $ 6,643 - $ 7,700 Note 5
Via Technologies, Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 147 4,935 - 2,682| Note 5
Cyberlink Co. - Available-for-sale financial assets 25 3,089 - 3,466te
ITE Tech. Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 5 317 - 362 eNot
Optotech Corporation - Available-for-sale financial assets 50 1,305 - 1,430te
Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. - Available-for-sale finalrgssets 113 8,841 - 9,954 Note 5
Solar Applied Materials Technology Corp. - Available-for-satarficial assets 61 4,79% - 4,987 Note5
Vanguard International Semiconductor Co. - Available-for-salefiahassets 220 3,434 - 3,542 Note 5
Marcoblock Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 10 1,162 - 1,490pte
Taiwan Semiconductor Co. - Available-for-sale financial assets 240 6,635 - 6,888| Note 5
Tang Eng Iron Works Co. - Available-for-sale financial assets 75 2,449 - 2,902| Note 5
Pan Jit International Inc. - Available-for-sale financial &sse 270 5,415 - 7,250 Note 5
Lite-On Semiconductor Corp. - Available-for-sale financiaktss 285 6,300 - 6,883 Note 5
MediaTek Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 2 991 - 1,116 eNot
Elan Microelectronics Corp. - Available-for-sale financedets 105 5,334 - 5,958 Note 5
Prolific Technology Inc. - Available-for-sale financial ess 50 1,776 - 2,450 Note 5
Ability Enterprise Co. - Available-for-sale financial assets 95 5,933 - 5,966te
Taiwan Hon Chuan Enterprise Co., Ltd. - Available-for-sale finhaskets 100 5,306 5,300 Note 5
Asia Cemet Corporation - Available-for-sale financial asset 100 3,424 - 3,460 Note 5
I-Chiun Precision Industry Co., Ltd. - Available-for-sale financesleds 40 1,916 - 2,208 Note 5
Cyber Power Systems, Inc. - Available-for-sale financialtasse 100 7,532 - 13,500 Note 5
Everlight Electronics Co., Ltd. - Available-for-sale finaheaissets 70 7,621 - 8,400 Note 5
Yuanta Financial Holdings - Available-for-sale financial asset 300 6,978 - 7,050 Noteb
Unimicron Technology Corp. - Available-for-sale financial &sse 70 3,108 - 3,248 Note 5
Hiwin Technologies Corp. - Available-for-sale financial &sse 80 3,101 - 3,348 Note 5
Sunrex Technology Corporation - Available-for-sale financialtasse 176 6,285 - 6,574 Note 5
A-DATA Technology Co., Ltd. - Available-for-sale financial asset 20 1,564 - 2,090, Note 5
Delta Electronics, Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 60 5,379 - 6,000te
Vivotek Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 95 3,764 - 4,323te
Visual Phoionics Epijaxy Co., Ltd. - Available-for-sale financedets 55 4,564 - 4,829 Note 5
Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltd. - Available-for-sale financial assets 15 897 - 935| Note 5
San Chih Semiconductor Inc. Ltd. - Available-for-sale financial asset 7 347 - 545| Note 5
JuTeng International Holdings Limited - Available-for-sale fficial assets 195 8,175 - 7,020 Noteb5
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. - Available-for-sale finahassets 50 2,295 - 2,325 Note 5
Neo-Neon Holdings Limited - Available-for-sale financial asse 400 5,280 - 6,420 Note 5
Beneficiary certificates (mutual)
Cathay Bond Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 4,285 50,880 - 51,2R6te 4
Jih Sun Bond Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 2,130 30,000 - 30,0N6te 4
FSITC Bound Found - Available-for-sale financial assets 294 50,000 - 50,09%4te Al
Fuh Hwa Yu-Li Found - Available-for-sale financial assets 3,501 45,004 - 45,107 Note 4
Fuh Hwa Global Fixed Income Found of Founds - Available-for-sale finansgetisas 1,899 20,757 - 23,304 Note 4
Cathay Cathay Found - Available-for-sale financial assets 408 5,000 - 6,ll6®te M
Manulife Asia Pacific Bond Fund - Available-for-sale finanaissets 2,000 20,00( - 19,840 Note 4
Capital Income Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 649 10,000 - 10,00@te Al
Jih Sun Small Cap Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 868 12,000 - 12,783 Note 4
Kathy Mandarin Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 500 5,000 - 4 95m®te M
Cathy Man AHL Futures Trust Fund of Funds - Available-for-salenfiizh assets 2,474 25,000 - 23,302 Note 4
(Continued)
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December 31, 2009
No. | Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relatlgnshlp with the Financial Statement Account Shares Carrying Value | Percentage of Market Value or Note
ompany (Thousands/ .
, (Note 6) Ownership | Net Asset Value
Thousand Units)
Bonds
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Company 1st - Available-for-sale financial assets 50 $ 51,398 - $ 51,6Mbte 5
Unsecured Subordinate Corporate Bonds Issue
in 2006
AU Optronics Corporation 1st Secured Corporate - Available-for-sale financial assets 50 51,372 - 51,6K8te 5
Bonds Issue in 2008
Convertible bonds
Synnex Technology International Corporatidn [L - Financial assets at fair value 1,002 - 1,010 Note §
Uusecured Convertible Bond Issue in 2008
Epistar Corporation Ltd. 3rd Convertible Bond - Financial asséas atalue through profit or 35 3,732 - 4,078| Note 5
loss
Evergreen Marine Corp. (Taiwan) Ltd. 3rd - Financial assets at fair value through profit pr 60 6,412 - 6,288| Note 5
Unsecured Convertible Bond loss
Everlight Electronics Co., Ltd. 3rd Convertible - Financial assets at fair value through profit pr 40 4,351 - 5,136/ Note 5
Bonds loss
Asia Optical's Second Domestic Unsecured - Financial assets at fair value through profit pr 49 4,900 - 6,223| Note 5
Convertible Bond loss
Everlight Electronics Co., Ltd "4Convertible - Financial assets at fair value through profit pr 50 5,000 - 5,958| Note 5
Bonds loss
Kingslide Works Co., Ltd."Convertible Bond - Financial assets at fair value through profit pr 50 5,000 - 5,150 Note 5
loss
22 |Senao International Stocks
(Samoa) Holding Ltd. Senao International HK Limited Subsidiary vedtment accounted for using equity method - - 100 - | Note 9
(Note 12)
24 |Chunghwa Investment  |Stocks
Holding Company CHI One Investment Co., Limited Subsidiary Investment accounted for using equity method - - 100 - |Note 10
(Note 12)

Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:

Note 4.
Note 5:
Note 6:
Note 7:
Note 8:
Note 9:
Note 10:
Note 11:
Note 12:

The net asset values of investees were based on auditedhfis@tements.
The net asset values of investees were based on unauditeidifistatements.

New Prospect Investments Holdings Ltd. (B.V.l.) anch@sia Investments Group Ltd. (B.V.l.) were incorporated in M&@06, but not on operating stage, yet.

holding company.

The net asset values of beneficiary certification (miund) were based on the net asset values on December 31, 2009.
Market value was based on the closing price of December 31, 2009.
Showing at their original carrying amounts without adjustnienfair values, except for held-to-maturity financial assets
The net asset values of investees were based on amortized cost.
Senao International (Samoa) Holding Ltd. (SIS) was establishezhhg B 2009. No capital is injected in SIS yet by the end of 2009.
Senao International HK Limited (SIHK) was established by SIS in 2008 capital is injected in SIHK yet by the end of 2009.

CHI One Investment Co., Ltd. (COI) was established by CHI in 2009capital is injected in COIl yet by the end of 2009.
Market value of emerging stock was based on the average jpade on December 31, 2009.
The amount was eliminated upon consolidation.
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MARKETABLE SECURITIES ACQUIRED AND DISPOSED OF AT C OSTS OR PRICES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 3

Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal Ending Balate
o Shares Shares Shares . Shares
No. Company Name Marketable SI\? curities Type and Financial Statement Account |Counter-party Natgre Of. (Thousands/| Amount (Thousands/ (Thousands/ Carrying Gain (Loss) | (Thousands/| Amount
ame Relationship Amount Amount Value .
Thousand (Note 1) Thousand Thousand (Note 1) on Disposal | Thousand (Note 1)
Units) Units) Units) Units)
0 |Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. |__ Stock
Chunghwa Investment Co., Ltd{ Investments acaalifdr using - Subsidiary 98,000 $ 829,716 80,000| $ 758,709 -1 $ -1 8 -1 % - 178,000 $1,651,391
equity method (Note 3) (Notes 3 and §)
Chunghwa Singapore Pte. Ltd. Investments accdunteusing - Subsidiary 34,869 791,161 27,000 610,659 - - - - 61,869 1,407,519
equity method (Note 3) (Notes 3 and )
Vettel-CHT Co., Ltd. Investments accounted fdangs - Equity method - 95,836 - 197,088 - - - - - 269,924
equity method investee (Note 3) (Note 3)
Beneficiary certificates (mutual
fund)
PCA Well Pool Fund Available-for-sale financiaisets - - 117,079 1,500,000 77,102 1,000,000 - - - - 194,181 2,500,000
Yuanta Wan Tai Bond Fund Available-for-sale finiahassets - - 104,520 1,500,000 69,163 1,000,000 - - - - 173,683 2,500,000
Mega Diamond Bond Fund Available-for-sale finaheissets - - - - 126,106 1,500,000 - - - - 126,106 1,500,000
Polaris De-Li Fund Available-for-sale financiasets - - 97,388 1,500,000 128,513 2,000,000 96,247 1,500,000 1,491,213 8,787 129,654 2,008,787
Fuh-Hwa Bond Fund Available-for-sale financiadets - - - - 108,849 1,500,000 - - - - 108,849 1,500,000
Franklin Templeton Sinoam Available-for-sale financial assets - - 18,089 200,000 4,060 50,000 8,149 102,177 91,982 10,195 14,000 158,018
Franklin Templeton Global
Bond Fund of Fund
Fuh Hwa Global Fixed Inc. FOR#wvailable-for-sale financial assets - - - - 11,512 140,000 - - - - 11,512 140,000
Fubon Taiwan Selected Fund Available-for-salarfitial assets - - 100,000 618,404 - - 100,000 671,052 618,104 52,948 - -
HSBC Taiwan Balanced Strategivailable-for-sale financial assets - - 100,000 797,811 - - 100,000 794,099 769,374 24,725 - -
Fund (Note 4)
Cathay Chung Hwa No. 1 Fund| Available-for-sateficial assets - - 100,000 717,909 - - 100,000 696,522 710,886 (14,364) - -
(Note 4)
Fuh Hwa Power Fund Il Available-for-sale finaalcassets - - 100,000 726,771 - - 100,000 717,136 677,182 39,954 - -
(Note 4)
MFS Meridian Emerging Marketévailable-for-sale financial assets - - 336 208,578 - - 336 231,575 208,578 22,997 - -
Debt Fund
MFS Meridian Strategic Income Available-for-sale financial assets - - 316 132,592 - - 316 141,019 132,592 8,427 - -
Fund
Fidelity Fds Intl Bond Available-for-sale finamtiassets - - 14,644 565,387 - - 14,644 551,576 565,387 (13,811) - -
Sinopia Alternative Funds - Available-for-sale financial assets - - - 623,332 - - - 684,208 647,917 36,291 - -
Global Bond Market Neutral
Fund 600
HSBC GIF Global Emerging |Available-for-sale financial assets - - - - 273 155,112 - - - - 273 155,112
Markets Bond Fund
Templeton Global Bond Fund |Available-for-sale financial assets - - - - 289 210,001 - - - - 289 210,001
Class A
PIMCO Global Investor Series fAvailable-for-sale financial assets - - - - 398 161,575 - - - - 398 161,575
Global InvestmenGrade Cred
Fund Class H - Institutional
Accumulation
Schroder International SelectiopAvailable-for-sale financial assets - - - - 31 197,071 - - - - 31 197,071
Fund - BRIC (Brazil, Russia,
India, China) EUR Al
(Accumulation)
Fidelity Funds - European High|Available-for-sale financial assets - - 324 126,425 - - 324 131,145 126,425 4,720 - -
Yield Fund
Parvest Europe Bond Fund Available-for-sale foialhassets - - 39 287,400 - - 39 320,925 287,400 33,525 - -
(Continued)
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Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal Ending Balate
Marketable Securities Type anq . . Nature of Shares Shares Shares Carrying . Shares
No. Company Name Name Financial Statement Account |Counter-party Relationshi (Thousands/| Amount (Thousands/ (Thousands/ Gain (Loss) | (Thousands/| Amount
p Amount Amount Value .
Thousand (Note 1) Thousand Thousand (Note 1) on Disposal | Thousand (Note 1)
Units) Units) Units) Units)
SISF - Euro Bond Class Al Available-for-sale financial assets - - -1 $ - 260 | $ 190,098 - -1 $ -1 % - 260 | $ 190,098
(Accumulation)
Fidelity Euro Balance Fund Available-for-saleditial assets - - 879 560,819 - - 403 217,420 257,136 (39,716) 476 303,683
Bonds
Taiwan Power Co. 1st Unsecurgdeld-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 262,500 - - - - - | $ 175,000
Bond-B Issue in 2001 (Note 2) (Notes 2 and §)
Formosa Petrochemical Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
Corporation 5th Unsecured (Note 2) (Note 2)
Corporate Bonds Issue in 2006
Nan Ya Company 3rd UnsecureHdeld-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
Corporate Bonds Issue in 2008 (Note 2) (Note 2)
China Development Financial |Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
Holding Corporation 1st (Note 2) (Note 2)
Unsecured Corporate Bonds
Issue in 2007
China Development Financial |Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 100,000 - - - - - 100,000
Holding Corporation 1st (Note 2) (Note 2)
Unsecured Corporate Bonds-A
Issue in 2008
Formosa Petrochemical Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 100,000 - - - - - 100,000
Corporation 2Nd Unsecured (Note 2) (Note 2)
Corporate Bonds Issue in 200
Formosa Petrochemical Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
Corporation 1st Unsecured (Note 2) (Note 2)
Corporate Bonds Issue in 2009
Nan Ya Company 1st Unsecurgéield-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 100,000 - - - - - 100,000
Corporate Bonds Issue in 2009 (Note 2) (Note 2)
MLPC 1St Unsecured CorporatgHeld-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
Bonds Issue in 2008 (Note 2) (Note 2)
China Development Financial |Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
Holding Corporation 1st (Note 2) (Note 2)
Unsecured Corporate Bonds
Issue in 2007
Taiwan Power Co.ril Unsecure(Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
Bond-CB Issue in 2003 (Note 2) (Note 2)
Taipei Fubon Bank®1Financial |Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 100,000 - - - - - 100,000
Debentures-BA Issue in 2005 (Note 2) (Note 2)
1 |Senao International Co., Ltd. Beneficiary cestifes (mutual
fund)
Prudential financial bond Available-for-sale firtéal assets - - - - 6,610 100,000 3,306 50,031 50,000 31 3,304 50,000
IBT bond Available-for-sale financial assets - - - - 7,385 100,000 3,694 50,041 50,000 41 3,691 50,000
9 |Chunghwa Telecom SingaporgStocks
Pte., Ltd. ST-2 Satellite Ventures Pte., Lithvestment accounted for using - Equity-method 4,735 106,432 13,367 302,629 - - - - 18,102 408,341
equipment investee (SG$ 4,735 (SG$ 13,367 (SG$ 17,878
(Note 3)
14 |Chunghwa Investment Co., LtBeneficiary certificates (mutual
fund)
Cathay G16 Money Market Available-for-sale fineh@assets - - 4,860 50,163 4,845 50,851 9,705 100,594 101,014 (420) - -
Note 1: Showing at their original carrying amounwtthout adjustments for fair values.
Note 2: Stated at its nominal amounts.
Note 3: The ending balance includes investment @af3) recognized under equity method, cumulatiaeslation adjustments, and unrealized loss @anfifal instruments, respectively.
Note 4: The carrying amount of disposal was deeay impairment losses.
Note 5: The carrying amount of installment was deld $87,500 thousand.
Note 6: The amount was eliminated upon consolidatio
(Concluded)
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ACQUISITION OF INDIVIDUAL REAL ESTATE PROPERTIES AT PRICES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PA ID-IN CAPITAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Spead#fil Otherwise)

TABLE 4

Proceeds

Prior Transaction Made by Related Counter-party

Transaction | Transaction . Nature of . Purpose of
Company Name Type of Property Date Amount Collection Counter-party Relationship owner Relationship Transfer Amount Price Reference Acquisition Other Terms
Status Date
Light Era Development Co., Ltd|Land and buildings 2009.09.01 $610,000 |All collected New Brilliance Asset - - - - $ Evaluation report of |Construction sites -

Management Corp.

jointed firm
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTIN G TO AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 5

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/ Accounts Payable or
Nature of Receivable
No. Company Name Related Party : . -
Relationship I Ending Balance
Purchase/Sale Amount % to Total Payment Terms Units Price Payment Terms (Note 1) % to Total
0 |Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Senao International Co., Litd. ~ Subsidiary Sales $ 999,821 1 30 days (Note 2) (Note 2) $ 261,458 2
(Notes 4 and 10) (Notes 5 and 10)
Purchase 5,172,852 5 30-90 days (Note 2) (Note 2) (604,008) (6)
(Notes 3 and 10) (Note 10)
CHIEF Telecom Inc. Subsidiary Sales 229,335 - 30 days (Note 2) (Note 2) 23,031 -
(Notes 6 and 10) (Note 10)
Purchase 309,498 - 60 days (Note 2) (Note 2) (51,554 D
(Note 10) (Note 10)
Chunghwa System IntegratioSubsidiary Purchase 441,564 - 30 days - - (426,674) (4)
Co., Ltd. (Notes 7 and 10) (Notes 8 and 10)
InfoExplorer Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Purchase 111,190 - 30 days (Note 2) (Note 2) (11,382) -
(Notes 9 and 10) (Note 10)
Taiwan International Standaré&quity-method |Purchase 481,743 - 30-90 days - - (271,290) 3)
Electronics Co., Ltd. investee
1 |Senao International Co., Ltd] Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Parent company Sales 5,093,269 27 30-90 days (Note 2) (Note 2) 604,005 59
(Notes 3 and 10) (Note 10)
Purchase 956,945 6 30 days (Note 2) (Note 2) (142,117) (12)
(Notes 4 and 10) (Notes 5 and 10)
2 |CHIEF Telecom Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Parent company Sales 309,498 28 60 days (Note 2) (Note 2) 51,554 39
(Note 10) (Note 10)
Purchase 228,557 26 30 days (Note 2) (Note 2) (23,031 (28)
(Notes 6 and 10) (Note 10)
3 [Chunghwa System Integratia@hunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd| Parent company Sales 1,334,846 45 30 days - - 427,123 86
Co., Ltd. (Notes 7 and 10) (Notes 8 and 10)
11 |InfoExplorer Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Parent company Sales 142,50622 30 days (Note 2) (Note 2) 11,382 4
(Notes 9 and 10) (Note 10)
(Continued)
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Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:
Note 4.
Note 5:
Note 6:
Note 7:
Note 8:
Note 9:
Note 10:

Excluding payment and receipts collected in trust for others.
Transaction terms were determined in accordance with mgteehzents.

The difference was because Senao International Co., Ltd. classfeadount as nonoperating income and other current liabilities.

The difference was because Senao International Co., Ltd. ethfisiffiamount as operating expenses.

The difference was because Senao International Co., Ltdfietbds amount as other payables.

The difference was because CHIEF Telecom Inc. classifeghtount as operating expenses.

The difference was because Chunghwa classified the amount ag/ppigetand equipment, inventories, and intangible assets.
The difference was because Chunghwa classified the amount as payadhdctors.

The difference was because Chunghwa classified the amount as ppd@etrgnd equipment, inventories, and intangible assets.
The amount was eliminated upon consolidation.
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$100 M

DECEMBER 31, 2009
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL

TABLE 6

Turnover Overdue Amounts Received Allowance for Bad
No. Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationship Ending Balance . in Subsequent
Rate Amounts Action Taken Period Debts
0 |Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Senao International Co., Ltd. Subsidiary $ 261,458 4.54 $ - - $ 261,458 $ -
(Note 2) (Note 1)
1 |Senao International Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Parent company 862,912 8.5 - - 3,771 -
(Note 2) (Note 1)
3 |Chunghwa System Integration Co., Li@hunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Parent company 427,123 2.42 - - 182,104 -

(Note 2)

(Note 1)

Note 1: Payments and receipts collected in trust for otherselteled from the accounts receivable for calculating the turnover rate

Note 2: The amount was eliminated upon consolidation.
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NAMES, LOCATIONS, AND OTHER INFORMATION OF INVESTEE S IN WHICH THE COMPANY EXERCISES SIGNIFICANT INFLUE NCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unles®therwise Specified)

TABLE 7

Original Investment Amount Balance as of December$ 2009 Net Income | Recognized Gair
No. Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Bugsesses and Products December 31, | December 31, Shares Percentage of Carrving Value (Loss) of the (Loss) Note

2009 2008 (Thousands) | Ownership (%) ying Investee (Notes 1 and 2)

0 |Chunghwa Telecom Co., LtdSenao International Co., LtdSindian City, Taipei Selling and maintaining molpleones and its $ 1,065,813| $ 1,065,813 71,773 29 $ 1,331,859 $ 1,008,040/ $ 288,268 |Subsidiary
peripheral products (Note 7) (Note 7)

Light Era Development Co.,|Taipei Housing, office building development, rent 3,000,000 3,000,000 300,000 100 2,926,677 (49,907) (49,757)|Subsidiary
Ltd. and sale services (Note 7) (Note 7)

Chunghwa Investment Co., |Taipei Telecommunications, telecommunications 1,738,709 980,000 178,000 89 1,651,391 45,517 34,424 |Subsidiary
Ltd. value-added services and other related (Note 7) (Note 7)

professional investment
Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Telecommunication wholesale, internet 1,389,939 779,280 61,869 100 1,407,519 24 24 |Subsidiary
Singapore Pte., Ltd. transfer services international data and long (Note 7) (Note 7)
distance call wholesales to carriers
Chunghwa System Integratigraipei Providing communication and information 838,506 838,506 60,000 100 706,937 3,702 (14,033)|Subsidiary
Co., Ltd. aggregative services (Note 7) (Note 7)

CHIEF Telecom Inc. Taipei Internet communicatand internet data 482,165 482,165 37,942 69 447,647 25,012 19,956 |Subsidiary
center (“IDC”) service (Note 7) (Note 7)

Taiwan International Standdihipei Manufacturing, selling, designing, and 164,000 164,000 1,760 40 427,810 (53,764) (48,471)|Equity-method

Electronics Co., Ltd. maintaining of telecommunications systems investee
and equipment

InfoExplorer Co., Ltd. Bangiao City, Taipei ITlation provider, IT application 283,500 - 22,498 49 276,472 5,093 (7,029)|Subsidiary
consultation, system integration and (Note 7) (Note 7)
package solution

Viettel-CHT Co., Ltd. Vietham IDC services 8827 91,239 - 30 269,924 23,766 7,724 |Equity-method

investee

Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd|Hong Kong International telecommunications IPifictis 201,263 201,263 51,590 100 230,524 15,075 15,075 |Subsidiary
internet and internet transfer services (Note 7) (Note 7)

Chunghwa International Taipei Yellow pages sales and advertisement ssyic 150,000 150,000 15,000 100 171,986 60,714 61,441 |Subsidiary

Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. (Note 7) (Note 7)

Skysoft Co., Ltd. Taipei Providing of music and, software, 67,025 67,025 4,438 30 89,913 16,816 5,045 |Equity-method
electronic information, and advertisemen investee
services

KingWay Technology Co., |Taipei Publishing books, data processing and 71,770 71,770 1,703 33 69,913 2,252 (4,804)|Equity-method

Ltd. software services investee

Chunghwa Telecom Global,|United States International data and internetisesvand 70,429 70,429 6,000 100 63,752 14,916 (5,115)|Subsidiary

Inc. long distance call wholesales to carriers (Note 7) (Note 7)
Spring House EntertainmentTaipei Network services, producing digital 62,209 62,209 5,996 56 57,095 20,332 11,982 |Subsidiary
Inc. entertainment contents and broadband vi (Note 7) (Note 7)
sound terrace development

So-net Entertainment TaiwalT aipei Online service and sale of computer hardware 60,008 - 3,429 30 30,920 (96,958) (29,086)|Equity-method

investee

Chunghwa Telecom Japan |Japan Telecom business, information process arjd 17,291 6,140 1 100 10,166 (4,304) (4,304)|Subsidiary

Co., Ltd. information provide service, developmen (Note 7) (Note 7)
and sale of software and consulting services
in telecommunication
New Prospect Investments |British Virgin Islands |Investment - - - 100 - - - |Subsidiary
Holdings Ltd. (B.V.l.) (Note 3) (Note 3) (Notes 3and 7 (Notes 3 and 7
Prime Asia Investments British Virgin Islands |Investment - - - 100 - - - |Subsidiary
Group Ltd. (B.V.1) (Note 3) (Note 3) (Notes 3 and 7 (Notes 3 and 7
(Continued)
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Original Investment Amount Balance as of December$3 2009 Net Income | Recognized Gair
No. Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Busesses and Products December 31, | December 31, Shares Percentage of Carrving Value (Loss) of the (Loss) Note
2009 2008 (Thousands) | Ownership (%) ying Investee (Notes 1 and 2)
1 |Senao International Co., LtdSenao Networks, Inc. Linkou Hsiang, Taip€felecommunication facilities manufactures| $ 206,190| $ 206,190 15,295 41 $ 288,407 $ 104,663 $ 45,235 |Equity-method
and sales investee
Senao International (SamogSamoa Islands International investment - - - 100 - - - |Subsidiary
Holding Ltd. (Notes 4 and 7 (Notes 4 and 7
2 |CHIEF Telecom Inc. Unigate Telecom Inc. Taipei eleEommunication and internet service 2,000 2,000 200 100 1,997 33 33 [Subsidiary
(Note 7) (Note 7)
CHIET Telecom (Hong Hong Kong Network communication and engine room 1,678 1,678 400 100 993 (291) (191) |Subsidiary
Kong) Limited hiring (HK$ 400)| (HK$ 400) (HK$ 241)| (HK$ (45))| (HK$ (45))
(Note 7) (Note 7)
Chief International Corp. Samoa Islands Netwarkimunication and engine room 6,068 6,068 200 100 7,601 1,178 1,178 |Subsidiary
hiring (Uss 200)| (UsS$ 200) (Uss 238)| (US$ 36)| (US$ 36)
(Note 7) (Note 7)
3 |Chunghwa System Integraté@oncord Technology Co., Lid@grunei Providing advanced business solutions to 16,179 16,179 500 100 474 (12,738) (12,738)|Subsidiary
Co., Ltd. telecommunications (Uss 500) (US$ 500) (USss 15)| (US$ (386))| (US$ (386))
(Note 7) (Note 7)
9 |Chunghwa Telecom ST-2 Satellite Ventures Pte.|Singapore Operation of ST-2 telecommunication kel 409,061 106,432 18,102 38 408,341 (7,478) (2,842)|Equity-method
Singapore Pte., Ltd. Ltd. (SG$ 18,102) (SG$ 4,735 (SG$ 17,878) (SG$ (329)) (SG$ (125))| investee
14 | Chunghwa Investment Co.,|Chunghwa Precision Test |Tao Yuan Semiconductor testing components and pri 91,875 91,875 10,317 54 109,560 (9,998) (5,372)|Subsidiary
Ltd. Tech Co., Ltd. circuit board industry production and (Note 7) (Note 8)
marketing of electronic products
Chunghwa Investment Burnei General investment 20,000 20,000 589 100 10,860 (72) (72) |Subsidiary
Holding (Uss 589) (US$ 589) (USs 341) (US$ 2))| (Uss$ (2))
(Note 7) (Note 8)
Tatung Technology Inc. Taipei The product of SEJP BOX 50,000 50,000 5,000 28 36,544 6,072 760 |Equity-method
investee
Panda Monium Company Lt€Cayman The production of animation 20,0p0 20,000 602 43 - (34,418) (14,645)|Equity-method
(USs 602)| (US$ 602) investee
CHIEF Telecom Inc. Taipei Telecommunication amigiinet service 20,000 20,000 2,000 4 20,588 25,012 550 |Equity-method
(Note 7) (Note 8) | investee
18 |Concord Technology Co., Lilory Network System Shanghai Providing advanced business solutions to 16,179 16,179 500 100 469 (12,738) (12,738)|Subsidiary
Service (Shanghai) Co., telecommunications (Uss 500) (US$ 500) (Uss 15)| (US$ (386))| (US$ (386))
Ltd. (Note 7) (Note 7)
22 |Senao International (Samodpenao International HK Hong Kong Sales of communication business - - - 100 - - - |Subsidiary
Holding Ltd. Limited. (Notes 5 and 7 (Notes 5 and 7
24 | Chunghwa Investment (CHI One Investment Co., |Hong Kong General investment - - - 100 - - - |Subsidiary
Holding Company Limited) (Notes 6 and 7 (Notes 6 and 7
Note 1: The equity in net income (loss) of investeas based on audited financial statements.
Note 2: The equity in net income (loss) of investieeludes amortization of differences betweenitiestment cost and net value and elimination oéalized transactions.
Note 3: New Prospect Investments Holdings Ltd. (B)\and Prime Asia Investments Group Ltd. (B.\Adgre incorporated in March 2006, but not on opegagtage. Chunghwa has 100% ownership right iamaount of US$1 in each holding company.
Note 4: Senao International (Samoa) Holding Ltds established by Senao International Co., Ltd0i®92 No capital is injected in Senao Internatiq®amoa) yet by the end of 2009.
Note 5: Senao International Co., Ltd. establisheda® International HK Limited by the subsidiaryn&e International (Samoa) Holding Ltd., in 2009.0 &&pital is injected in Senao International HK lted yet by the end of 2009.
Note 6: CHI established CHI One Investment Co.,itachby the subsidiary, Chunghwa Investment Holddogmpany, in Hong Kong in 2009. No capital is atggl in CHI One Investment Co., Limited yet by émal of 2009.
Note 7: The amount was eliminated upon consolidatio
Note 8: The transactions happened after Chunghwadrarol over CHI on September 9, 2009 were elitaid upon consolidation.
(Concluded)
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INVESTMENT IN MAINLAND CHINA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, in Thousands of U.S. Daik)

TABLE 8

Accumulated

Investment Flows

Accumulated

Carrying Value

Accumulated

Outflow of % Ownership of Inward
Outflow of . Investment as of .
. . Total Amount of| Investment Investment from Direct or . Remittance of
Investee Main Businesses and Products - ) Investment from . . Gain (Loss) December 31, )
Paid-in Capital Type . Outflow Inflow Taiwan as of Indirect Earnings as of
Taiwan as of (Note 2 and 4) 2009
January 1. 2009 December 31, Investment (Note 4) December 31,
y - 2009 2009
Glory Network System |Providing advanced business solutii $ 16,179 Note 1 $ 16,179 -1 $ $ 16,179 100% $ (12,738)| $ 469 | $ -
Service (Shanghai) to telecommunications (USs$ 500) (Uss 500) (USs$ 500) (Uss (386))| (US$ 15)

Co., Ltd.

Accumulated Investment in
Mainland China as of
December 31, 2009

Investment Amounts

Commission, MOEA

Authorized by Investment

Upper Limit on Investment
Stipulated by Investment
Commission, MOEA

$16,179
(US$500)

$48,169
(US$1,500)

$375,245
(Note 3)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

The amount was eliminated upon consolidation.

Recognition of investment gains (losses) was calculated badedliovngstee’s audited financial statements.

The amount was calculated based on the net assets value of Chungbmdr$ggration Co., Ltd.

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. indirectly owns this im¥délstough an investment company registered in a third region.
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERCOMPANY RELATIONSHIPS AND SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 9

Transaction Details
No e Nlature ?:‘ % to
Year : Company Name Related Party Relationship : . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or|
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)
2009 0 Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Senao International Co., Ltd. a Accountsbkceiva 261,458 - -
Accounts payable 616,052 - -
Amounts collected in trust for others 247,091 - -
Revenues 999,821 - 1
Non-operating income and gains 35 - -
Operating costs and expenses 5,172,852 - 3
Office supplies 165 - -
Property, plant and equipment 268 - -
CHIEF Telecom Inc. a Accounts receivable 23,660 - -
Accounts payable 51,554 - -
Amounts collected in trust for others 2,984 - -
Revenues 229,335 - -
Operating costs and expenses 309,498 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. a Accounts receivable 29,422 - -
Accounts payable 426,674 - -
Payable to contractors 449 - -
Revenues 34,879 - -
Non-operating income and gains 6,890 - -
Operating costs and expenses 441 564 - -
Office supplies 1,264 - -
Inventories 19,139 - -
Property, plant and equipment 771,878 - -
Intangible assets 101,001 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. a Accounts receivable 20,399 - -
Accounts payable 31,001 - -
Advances from customers 13 - -
Revenues 59,288 - -
Operating costs and expenses 67,139 - -
Property, plant and equipment 21,770 - -
Spring House Entertainment Inc. a Accounts receivable 7,706 - -
Accounts payable 3,025 - -
Revenues 2,500 - -
Operating costs and expenses 83,868 - -
Unigate Telecom Inc. a Revenues 1,971 - -
(Continued)
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Transaction Details
No e Nlature 2:‘ % to
: Company Name Related Party Relationship : : Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)
Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. a Accounts receivable 22,899 - -
Accounts payable 86,287 - -
Amounts collected in trust for others 23,033 - -
Advances from customers 2,240 - -
Revenues 19,168 - -
Non-operating income and gains 126 - -
Operating costs and expenses 84,334 - -
Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. a Accounts receivable 10,112 - -
Accounts payable 13,733 - -
Advances from customers 25,551 - -
Revenues 2,690 - -
Operating costs and expenses 14,196 - -
Light Era Development Co., Ltd. a Accounts payable 78 - -
Amounts collected in trust for others 494 - -
Revenues 4,022 - -
Operating costs and expenses 74 - -
InfoExplorer Co., Ltd. a Accounts receivable 63 - -
Accounts payable 11,382 - -
Revenues 14,336 - -
Operating costs and expenses 111,190 - -
Inventories 7,792 - -
Property, plant and equipment 16,857 - -
Intangible assets 6,667 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Japan Co., Ltd. a Accounts receivable 3,78( - -
Accounts payable 2,472 - -
Revenues 10,291 - -
Operating costs and expenses 8,646 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Pte., Ltd. a Accounts receivable 2,382 -
Accounts payable 2,946 - -
Revenues 12,794 - -
Operating costs and expenses 13,613 - -
Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. a Accounts receivable 1,220 - -
Revenues 6,641 - -
Non-operating income and gains 286 - -
Operating costs and expenses 1 - -
1 Senao International Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accounts receivable 604,005 - -
Other receivable 258,907 - -
Prepaid expenses 231 - -
Accounts payable 142,117 - -
Other payable 119,341 - -
Amounts collected in trust for others 79,925 - -
Revenues 5,093,269 - 3
Non-operating income and gains 91 - -
Operating costs and expenses 999,821 - 1
Non-operating expenses and losses 35 - -
(Continued)
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Transaction Details
No e Nlature ?:‘ % to
: Company Name Related Party Relationship : . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)
Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. c Other payable $ 170 - -
Operating costs and expenses 1,212 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. c Other payable 4,550 - -
Revenues 19 - -
2 CHIEF Telecom Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accounts receivable 54,538 - -
Accounts payable 23,031 - -
Advances from customers 629 - -
Revenues 309,498 - -
Operating costs and expenses 229,335 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. c Accounts receivable 25 - -
Revenues 137 - -
Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. c Notes payable 81 - -
Operating costs and expenses 77 - -
Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. c Accounts receivable 108 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. c Operating costs and expenses 74 -
3 Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accaensbie 427,123 - -
Accounts payable 29,422 - -
Revenues 1,334,846 - -
Operating costs and expenses 41,769 - -
CHIEF Telecom Inc. c Accounts payable 25 - -
Operating costs and expenses 137 - -
Spring House Entertainment Inc. c Accounts receivable 166 - -
Revenues 1,315 - -
Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. c Accounts payable 164 - -
Revenues 3,615 - -
Light Era Development Co., Ltd. c Revenues 6 - -
InfoExplorer Co., Ltd. c Accounts receivable 864 - -
Accounts payable 1,659 - -
Advances from customers 640 - -
Revenues 8,551 - -
Operating costs and expenses 1,580 - -
Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. c Accounts receivable 877 - -
Revenues 835 - -
Senao International Co., Ltd. c Accounts receivable 4 550 - -
Operating costs and expenses 19 - -
5 Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accounts receivable 31,001 - -
Prepaid expenses 13 - -
Accounts payable 20,399 - -
Revenues 88,909 - -
Operating costs and expenses 59,288 - -
CHIEF Telecom Inc. c Revenues 74 - -
Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. C Accounts receivable 88 - -
(Continued)
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Transaction Details
No e Nlature 2:‘ % to
: Company Name Related Party Relationship : . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)
7 Spring House Entertainment Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accountsaldeei $ 3,025 - -
Other payable 7,706 - -
Revenues 83,868 - -
Operating costs and expenses 2,500 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. c Accounts payable 166 - -
Operating costs and expenses 26 - -
Property, plant and equipment 689 - -
Intangible assets 600 - -
15 |Unigate Telecom Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Operating casexpenses 1,971 - -
4 Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., [@dunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accounts receivable 109,320 - -
Prepaid expenses 2,240 - -
Accounts payable 4,215 - -
Amounts collected in trust for others 17,545 - -
Advance from customers 1,139 - -
Revenues 84,334 - -
Operating costs and expenses 19,168 - -
Non-operating expenses and losses 126 - -
Senao International Co., Ltd. c Accounts receivable 170 - -
Revenues 1,212 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. c Accounts receivable 164 - -
Operating costs and expenses 680 - -
Property, plant and equipment 1,716 - -
Intangible assets 1,219 - -
CHIEF Telecom Inc. c Accounts receivable 81 - -
Revenues 77 - -
InfoExplorer Co., Ltd. c Accounts receivable 29 - -
Revenues 28 - -
6 Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accounts receivable 13,733 - -
Prepaid expenses 25,551 - -
Accounts payable 10,112 - -
Revenues 14,196 - -
Operating costs and expenses 2,690 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Pte., Ltd. c Accounts payable 1,444 - -
CHIEF Telecom Inc. c Accounts payable 108 - -
8 Light Era Development Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accountsableei 78 - -
Prepaid rent 494 - -
Revenues 74 - -
Operating costs and expenses 4,022 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. c Operating costs and expenses 6 - -
(Continued)
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Transaction Details
No e Nlature ?:‘ % to
: Company Name Related Party Relationship : . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)
11 InfoExplorer Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accounts receivable 14,382 - -
Accounts payable 63 - -
Revenues 142,506 - -
Operating costs and expenses 14,336 - -
Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. c Accounts payable 29 - -
Operating costs and expenses 28 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. c Accounts receivable 1,659 - -
Prepaid expenses 640 - -
Accounts payable 864 - -
Revenues 1,580 - -
Operating expenses 1,513 - -
Property, plant and equipment 88 - -
Intangible assets 6,950 - -
10 |Chunghwa Telecom Japan Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accountsbiecei 2,472 - -
Accounts payable 3,780 - -
Revenues 8,646 - -
Operating costs and expenses 10,291 - -
9 Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Pte., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accoeivabie 2,946 - -
Accounts payable 2,382 - -
Revenues 13,613 - -
Operating costs and expenses 12,794 - -
Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. c Accounts receivable 1,444 - -
20 | Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Acpayable 1,220 - -
Revenues 1 - -
Operating costs and expenses 6,927 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. c Accounts payable 877 - -
Operating costs and expenses 74 - -
Property, plant and equipment 761 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. C Accounts payable 88 - -
(Continued)

-73-



Transaction Details
No e Nlature 2:‘ % to
: Company Name Related Party Relationship : . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)
2008 0 Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. CHIEF Telecom Inc. a Accounts receivable $ 20,906 - -
Accounts payable 34,215 - -
Amount collected in trust for others 1,095 - -
Revenues 208,227 - -
Operating costs and expenses 207,345 - -
Unigate Telecom Inc. a Revenues 1,124 - -
Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. a Accounts receivable 38,688 - -
Prepaid expenses 94 - -
Accounts payable 35,198 - -
Amount collected in trust for others 61,273 - -
Revenues 23,499 - -
Operating costs and expenses 50,679 - -
Office supplies 989 - -
Work in process 436 - -
Senao International Co., Ltd. a Accounts receivable 178,878 - -
Accounts payable 606,990 - -
Amount collected in trust for others 244,291 - -
Revenues 1,634,017 - 1
Operating costs and expenses 6,667,907 - 3
Office supplies 574 - -
Work in process 238 - -
Property, plant and equipment 1,701 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. a Accounts receivable 40,741 - -
Prepaid expenses 515 - -
Accounts payable 628,485 - -
Payables to contractors 53,502 - -
Revenues 32,865 - -
Non-operating income and gains 884 - -
Operating costs and expenses 401,740 - -
Office supplies 2,538 - -
Work in process 5,168 - -
Materials in transit 3,723 - -
Temporary receipts 4,152 - -
Property, plant and equipment 1,388,118 - -
Intangible assets 52,127 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. a Accounts receivable 18,618 - -
Accounts payable 14,867 - -
Revenues 140,416 - -
Non-operating income and gains 446 - -
Operating costs and expenses 41,122 - -
Property, plant and equipment 56,740 - -
Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. a Accounts receivable 9,155 - -
Accounts payable 17,063 - -
Revenues 2,670 - -
Operating costs and expenses 8,599 - -
(Continued)
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Transaction Details
No C N Related P Relationsh oo
s ompany Name elated Party elationship . . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales of
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)
Spring House Entertainment Inc. a Accounts receivable $ 10,863 - -
Accounts payable 14,782 - -
Amounts collected in trust for others 2,794 - -
Operating costs and expenses 51,836 - -
Light Era Development Co., Ltd. a Accounts receivable 22,566 - -
Accounts payable 1,904 - -
Amounts collected in trust for others 346 - -
Revenues 4,662 - -
Deferred credit 1,485,916 -
Deferred debit 171,897 -
1 Senao International Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accounts receivable 851,011 - -
Prepaid expenses 231 - -
Accounts payable 178,658 - -
Revenues 6,670,564 - 3
Non-operating income and gains 76 - -
Operating costs and expenses 1,633,759 - 1
Non-operating expenses and losses 297 - -
Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. C Accounts payable 930 - -
Non-operating income and gains 3 - -
Operating costs and expenses 4,458 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. C Operating costs and expenses 650 - -
2 CHIEF Telecom Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accounts receivable 35,310 - -
Accounts payable 20,277 - -
Advances from subscribers 629 - -
Revenues 207,345 - -
Operating costs and expenses 204,894 - -
Property, plant and equipment 3,333 - -
Unigate Telecom Inc. c Accounts payable 1,437 - -
Revenues 34 - -
Operating costs 6,366 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. c Operating costs and expenses 34 - -
Property, plant and equipment 1,343 - -
Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. c Accounts payable 61 - -
Operating costs and expenses 91 - -
Chief International Corp. c Accounts receivable 52 - -
Prepaid expenses 588 - -
Accounts payable 5,076 - -
Advances from subscribers 96 - -
Revenues 6,274 - -
Operating costs and expenses 36,319 - -
(Continued)
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Transaction Details
No e Nlature 2:‘ % to
: Company Name Related Party Relationship : . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)
3 Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Acoecgit@able $ 681,987 - -
Accounts payable 40,741 - -
Revenues 1,858,081 - 1
Operating costs and expenses 33,749 - -
Senao International Co., Ltd. c Revenues 650 - -
Spring House Entertainment Inc. c Accounts receivable 28 - -
Revenues 128 - -
Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. c Revenues 4,461 - -
Light Era Development Co., Ltd. c Revenues 552 - -
CHIEF Telecom Inc. o Revenues 1,377 - -
5 Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accounts receivable 14,867 - -
Accounts payable 18,618 - -
Revenues 97,862 - -
Operating costs and expenses 140,862 - -
6 Spring House Entertainment Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accountsldeei 17,576 - -
Accounts payable 10,863 - -
Revenues 51,836 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. c Accounts payable 28 - -
Property, plant and equipment 128 - -
7 Unigate Telecom Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Operating costg@amses 1,124 - -
CHIEF Telecom Inc. c Accounts receivable 1,437 - -
Revenues 6,366 - -
Operating expenses 34 - -
8 Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., [@Glunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accounts receivable 28,655 - -
Accrued custodial receipts 61,273 - -
Accrued custodial payments 4,347 - -
Prepaid expenses 2,196 - -
Accounts payable payments 4,613 - -
Amounts collected in trust for others 27,294 - -
Advances from subscribers 6,781 - -
Revenues 52,198 - -
Operating costs and expenses 23,499 - -
Senao International Co., Ltd. c Accounts receivable 930 - -
Revenues 4,458 - -
Non-operating expenses and losses 3 - -
CHIEF Telecom Inc. c Accounts receivable 61 - -
Revenues 91 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. c Property, plant and equipment 3,229 - -
Intangible assets 461 - -
Operating costs and expenses 771 - -
Light Era Development Co., Ltd. c Revenues 20 - -
(Continued)

-76 -



Transaction Details
No e Nlature ?:‘ % to
: Company Name Related Party Relationship : . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)
9 Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accounts receivable $ 17,063 - -
Accounts payable 9,155 - -
Revenues 8,599 - -
Operating costs and expenses 2,670 - -
10 |Light Era Development Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. b Accounigaigiee 1,828 - -
Prepaid expenses 422 -
Accounts payable 22,566 - -
Operating costs and expenses 3,070 - -
Inventories 1,573,954 -
Leased assets 83,859 -
Property, plant and equipment 1,592 - -
Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. c Operating costs and expense 20 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. c Property, plant and equipment 186 - -
Intangible assets 312 - -
Operating costs and expenses 54 - -
11 | Chief International Corp. CHIEF Telecom Inc. c Accounts rabdgv 5,076 - -
Prepaid expenses 96 - -
Accounts payable 52 - -
Advances from subscribers 588 - -
Revenues 36,319 - -
Operating costs and expenses 6,274 - -

Note 1: Significant transactions between the Company and its sulesdaamount subsidiaries are numbered as follows:

a. “0” for the Company.
b. Subsidiaries are numbered from “1”.

Note 2: Related party transactions are divided into three caegar follows:
a. The Company to subsidiaries.
b. Subsidiaries to the Company.
c. Subsidiaries to subsidiaries.

Note 3: Except part transaction prices of SENAO, CHIEF, CIYP, LED awndkpiorer were determined in accordance with mutual agreements, ggeifay transactions with related parties were conducted under nammaleccial terms.

Note 4: For assets and liabilities, amount is shown as a pageettt consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2009 rex@leues, costs and expenses are shown as a percentage idatedsioital operating revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

Note 5: The amount was eliminated upon consolidation.

(Concluded)
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SEGMENT INFORMATION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(Amount in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 10

Year ended December 31, 2009

Revenues from external customers
Intersegment revenues (Note 2)
Interest income

Other income

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortization

Other expense

Segment income before tax

Total assets

Capital expenditures for segment assets

Year ended December 31, 2008

Revenues from external customers
Intersegment revenues (Note 2)
Interest income

Other income

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortization
Other expense

Segment income before tax
Total assets

Capital expenditures for segment assets

International
Domestic Fixed Mobile Fixed
Communications Communications Communications

Business Business Internet Business Business Others
$ 71,466,803 $ 86,524,119 $ 23,653,518 $ 15,244,205 $ 1,472,575
13,649,786 1,914,861 716,818 1,523,235 2,734
3,071 7,910 4,096 11,096 452,535
77,140 104,388 73,621 9,807 678,230
$ 85,196,800 $ 88,551,278 $ 24,448,053 $ 16,788,343 $ 2606,074
$ 2,505 $ 1,199 $ 10,027 $ 20 $ 1,472
$ 23,984,346 $ 8,372,746 $ 2326921 $ 1,403,691 $ 232,253
$ 156,248 $ 98,132 $ 10,572 $ 1,873 $ 279,424
$ 17,452,253 $ 30,183,840 $ 9,355,849 $ 2550,043 $ (2,303,898
$ 231,176,634 $ 63,537,383 $ 17,153,733 $ 18,699,859 $ 118,429,206
$ 15877274 $ 5,027,950 $ 2,097,183 $ 1,298,435 $ 1,176,745
$ 73,057,825 $ 88,808,032 $ 23,022,094 $ 15,936,284 $ 845,286
11,928,678 1,933,573 562,745 1,526,956 1,644
2,849 13,729 4,492 34,973 1,860,220
208,861 175,142 21,845 34,537 1,019,485
$ 85,198,213 $ 90,930,476 $ 23611,176 $ 17,532,750 $ 3,726,635
$ 192 $ 1,323 $ 2,037 $ 220 $ 484
$ 25,500,893 $ 8,859,477 $ 2,353,565 $ 1,326,296 $ 175,940
$ 323,679 $ 37,163 $ 8,699 $ 2,367 $ 1843,084
$ 15472512 $ 33,174,960 $ 10,086,204 $ 2910954 $ (1,960,71p
$ 243,101,703 $ 66,970,888 $ 17,004,425 $ 18,244,080 $ 118,269,193
$ 20,709,584 $ 5,206,961 $ 2,186,065 $ 1,200,129 $ 816,183
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Adjustment Total

$ - $ 198,361,220

(17,807,434) -

- 478,708

- 943,186

$ (17,807,431 $ 199,783,114
$ - $ 15,223
$ - $ 36319957
$ - $ 546,249
$ - $ 57238087
$ - $448,996,815
$ - $ 25,477,587
$ - $ 201,669,521

(15,953,596) -

- 1,916,263

- 1,459,870

$ (15,953,596 $ 205,045,654
$ - $ 4,256
$ - $ 38216171
$ 0 - 8 2214992
$ - $ 59683920
$ - $463590,289
$ - $ 30118922
(Continued)



Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

The Company organizes its reporting segments based onofypeganizational business. The five reporting segmentsegeegated as below: domestic fixed communications businesde mobi
communications business, internet business, international fixed comnmsdadsiness and others.

o Domestic fixed communications business - the provision of local telepheiesedomestic long distance telephone services, broadband accesttaddservices;

0 Mobile communications business - the provision of mobile services catexile handsets and data cards, and related services;

0 Internet business - the provision of HiNet services and relatédess

0 International fixed communications business - the provision of intenaatong distance telephone services and related services;

o0 Others - the provision of non-Telecom Services, and the corpolaidrigbms not allocated to reportable segments.

Represents intersegment revenues from goods and services.

Beginning from September 1, 2009, the Company redefinefthatscial reporting operating segments into five operatingnsegs: (a) domestic fixed communications business, (b) mobile
communications business, (c) internet business, (d) intenatiixed communications business and (e) others. Prior to Semtdm2009, Chunghwa Telecom had seven operating segments:(a)local
operations,(b)domestic long distance operations, (c) internatimmgldistance operations, (d) cellular service operatioimtgg)et and data operations, (f) cellular phone sales and ¢thalls. The
redefinition of the company’s operating segments is expectedilitatacthe management’s ability to assess the performan@ebfaperating segment by conforming the company’s operating segments
the international trends of other telecommunications companies inajen€he Company also early adopted the Statement of Finaccialinting Standards No. 41 “Operating Segments” (“SFAS No.

41" starting from September 1, 2009. For the comparative purpose, thergegnformation for the year ended December 31, 2008 was presententitaace with SFAS No. 41.

(Concluded)
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

TABLE 11

PRODUCTS AND SERVICE REVENUES FROM EXTERNAL CUSTOME R INFORMATION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008

Mobile services revenue $ 71,295,127 $ 72,289,844
Local telephone services revenue 34,116,203 35,187,684
Leased line services revenue 27,476,532 27,643,458
Internet services revenue 21,510,999 21,769,884
Sales revenue 15,058,169 16,340,458
International long distance telephone servicesmese 12,921,798 14,050,749
Domestic long distance telephone services revenue 7,406,662 8,480,347
Others 8,575,730 5,907,097

$ 198,361,220 $ 201,669,521
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